

PROFESSIONAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE

WALNUT TOWNSHIP LOCAL BOARD OF EDUCATION

AND THE

WALNUT TOWNSHIP EDUCATION ASSOCIATION OEA-NEA

July 1, 2022 – June 30, 2025

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE	RECOGNITION	1
Α.	RECOGNITION	1
В.	DEFINITIONS	
ARTICLE I	I RIGHTS	2
Α.	BOARD RIGHTS	2
В.	ASSOCIATION RIGHTS	
C.	INDIVIDUAL RIGHTS	
ARTICLE I	II NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURE	6
ARTICLE I	V GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	7
A.	DEFINITIONS	7
В.	RIGHTS OF THE GRIEVANT AND THE ASSOCIATION	7
C.	BOARD RIGHTSBOARD RIGHTS	
D.	TIME LIMITS	
E.	INFORMAL PROCEDURE	
F.	FORMAL PROCEDURE	
ARTICLE V	V LEAVES	10
Α.	GENERAL	10
В.	SICK LEAVE	
C.	BEREAVEMENT LEAVE	
D.	PERSONAL LEAVE	
E.	PROFESSIONAL LEAVE	
F.	SABBATICAL LEAVE	
G.	MANDATORY COURT APPEARANCES AND JURY SERVICE	
H.	MATERNITY/PATERNITY/CHILDCARE/ADOPTION LEAVE	
I.	UNPAID DISABILITY LEAVE OF ABSENCE	
J.	MILITARY LEAVE	
K.	ASSAULT LEAVE	
ARTICLE V	/I JOB SECURITY - TEACHING CONTRACTS	17
A.	SEQUENCE OF LIMITED CONTRACTS	17
В.	NON-RENEWAL OF LIMITED CONTRACTS	
C.	CONTINUING CONTRACT	
D.	INABILITY TO CONDUCT EVALUATION	19
E.	CONTRARY TO LAW	
F.	REDUCTION IN FORCE	
G.	AVAILABILITY OF SENIORITY AND REDUCTION IN FORCE LISTS	

ARTICLE V	/II TERMS & CONDITIONS	24
A.	PERSONNEL FILES	24
В.	SCHOOL DAY	26
C.	FACULTY MEETINGS	
D.	FACULTY PASSES	
E.	PLANNING/GRADING TIME	
F.	SCHOOL YEAR/SCHOOL CALENDAR	27
G.	PUBLIC COMPLAINT PROCEDURE	
H.	TEACHER EVALUATION PROCEDURES	
I.	ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFER	
J.	ACADEMIC FREEDOM	
K.	PROHIBITION AGAINST PUBLIC CRITICISM	40
L.	REQUIRED MEETINGS OR HEARINGS	
M.	INCLUSION	
N.	CLASS SIZE	
0.	LOCAL PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE/ENTRY YI	
3.	PROGRAM	
ARTICLE V	/III COMPENSATION	43
A.	SALARY	43
B.	PAYROLL PRACTICES	
C.	SUPPLEMENTAL SALARIES	
D.	STRS PICK-UP: SALARY REDUCTION METHOD	46
E.	RETIREMENT INCENTIVE	46
F.	SEVERANCE PAY	47
G.	DISABILITY RETIREMENT	48
H.	COVERING CLASSES OTHER THAN ASSIGNED	
I.	SALARY ADJUSTMENT	49
J.	TUITION REIMBURSEMENT	
K.	MEMBERSHIP DUES DEDUCTION	50
L.	INSURANCE BENEFITS	50
M.	TRAVEL EXPENSES	53
N.	EMPLOYMENT OF RETIRED TEACHERS	53
Ο.	SUPPLEMENTAL PAY SCHEDULE	
P.	OPEN ENROLLMENT OF TEACHER'S CHILDREN	57
Q.	SUBSTITUTE TEACHERS	57
R.	HOURLY PAID INSTRUCTION	57
S.	MENTOR TEACHERS - FOR RESIDENT EDUCATORS	58
T.	STIPENDS	58
ARTICLE I	X COMMUNICABLE DISEASES AND PHYSICAL EXAMINATIONS	58
A.	NONDISCRIMINATION	58
В.	REPORTS OF SUSPECTED CARRIERS	59
C.	TESTING CRITERIA	

D.	MEDICAL EXAMINATION	59
E.	REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION	60
F.	INVOLUNTARY REMOVAL OF A DISABLED UNIT MEMBER	61
G.	DISABILITY RETIREMENT	61
H.	CONFIDENTIALITY	61
I.	EDUCATION	61
J.	TIME LIMITS	61
K.	LAW	61
ARTICLE	X TOTAL AGREEMENT	62

ARTICLE I

RECOGNITION

A. RECOGNITION

The Walnut Township Local Board of Education, hereinafter "Board," hereby recognizes the Walnut Township Education Association/OEA/NEA, hereinafter the "Association," as the sole and exclusive bargaining representative, for the purposes of and as defined in Chapter 4117 Ohio Revised Code, for all professional, non-supervisory, full-time and 0.5 FTE or greater part-time personnel (as certified by the State Employment Relations Board) under contract, employed by the District performing any work currently being performed by bargaining unit members including by way of illustration only but not limited to; classroom teachers (K-12, adult, special, vocational), guidance counselors, librarians, media and program specialists, school social workers, and school nurses, excluding less than 0.5 FTE tutors, aides, and casual, day-to-day substitute teachers working less than sixty (60) consecutive days in the same position.

The Association recognizes that the Superintendent, Assistant Superintendent, and other Administrative Supervisory Personnel as defined in Chapter 4117 Ohio Revised Code are excluded from the bargaining unit. The employer recognizes that the Association will include any newly created licensed position unless employment into the position is governed by Section §3319.02 of the Ohio Revised Code.

B. DEFINITIONS

Bargaining unit members shall mean any certificated employee represented by the bargaining unit as defined in A. above.

ARTICLE II

RIGHTS

A. BOARD RIGHTS

Recognition of Board

The Association recognizes the Board as the locally elected body charged by the statutes of the State of Ohio [ORC §4117.08 (C)] with the establishment of policies for public education in the Walnut Township Local School District and as the employer of all certificated personnel of the school system.

The Board of Education retains all rights to manage and control the operations of the school district. The exercise of such power and authority shall be limited only by the express provisions of this agreement and only to the extent that such limitation may lawfully be included in this collective bargaining agreement. These rights include the right to:

- Determine matters of inherent managerial policy which include, but are not limited to areas of discretion or policy such as the functions and programs of the public employer, standards of services, its overall budget, utilization of technology, and organizational structure;
- Direct, supervise, evaluate, or hire employees;
- 3. Maintain and improve the efficiency and effectiveness of governmental operations;
- Determine the overall methods, process, means, or personnel by which governmental operations are to be conducted;
- Suspend, discipline, demote, or discharge for just cause, or lay off, transfer, assign, schedule, promote, or retain employees;
- Determine the adequacy of the work force;
- Determine the overall mission of the employer as a unit of government;
- Effectively manage the work force;
- Take actions to carry out the mission of the public employer as a governmental unit.

B. ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

The Association shall have the exclusive organizational rights listed in this Article.

1. a. Information Concerning Board Meetings

Prior to each regular or special Board meeting, the Board shall provide the Association with a copy of the Board agenda, and any other information deemed appropriate by the Superintendent.

Notice of Board Meeting

The Board shall give the Association advance notice via email of all regular and special Board meetings.

c. Board Meeting Participants

The Board shall allow an Association representative a reasonable period of time according to the Board President to speak during the time reserved for the Communications and Interviews section of the Board Agenda at regular Board meetings.

2. Directory Information

By October 1 of each school year, the Board shall provide the Association with a directory of the names, addresses, telephone numbers, and building assignments for all bargaining unit employees. The regular district personnel directory shall meet this requirement. Prior to the first day of school, the Board will provide the Association with the names, addresses, and phone numbers of new teachers.

3. Dissemination of Information

The Association will be allowed to post notices of activities and meetings on bulletin boards with one (1) in the elementary school and one (1) in the high school (staff lounge and workrooms). The Association may use the District inter-school mail service, employee mail boxes, computers, telephones and other technological applications for communication to bargaining unit members. Delivery of Association mail will be an internal Association responsibility in each school building.

The Association will be allowed to use the P. A. system for reminder notices for time, date, and location of Association activities and meetings. All announcements will be submitted to the building principal and announced according to normal announcement procedures.

4. General Teachers Meetings

The Board shall allow an Association representative(s) to address teachers for up to sixty (60) minutes during the general teachers' meeting at the beginning of the school year and will be included on the agenda for new teachers' orientation meeting.

5. Use of School Building, Facilities, and Equipment

- a. Upon completion of the building usage procedure and approval by the Superintendent, the Association shall be allowed to use the school buildings, facilities, and equipment for meetings.
- b. The Association shall have the right to use the school buildings for Association meetings before or after the teacher work day provided that such use does not conflict with normal school operation and school related activities.
- c. The Association will give the building principal reasonable advance notice of its desire to use a particular building for a meeting so that provisions may be made for appropriate custodial or security service.
- d. The Board will charge the Association only for custodial overtime costs, if any, incurred as a result of Association meetings.
- e. The Association may use school telephones, copiers, audio-visual equipment, computers and other technological applications, provided they are not being used or are not required for any school business or activity.
- f. The Association may pay for the reasonable cost of all materials and supplies incident to such use. Should any equipment and/or facilities owned by the District be damaged or lost through negligence or abuse by the Association, the Association may be assessed a reasonable repair and/or replacement fee.

6. Transaction of Association Business

Duly authorized representatives of the Association and its affiliates may transact Association business on school property at any time before, after, or during the regular school day; provided, however, that no such business shall be transacted on any class time or assigned duty time, nor shall such Association business in any way interfere with scheduled student-teacher, parent-teacher, or administrator-teacher conferences or other school functions or activities. All visitors, including Association representatives, must report to the building office before transacting such business and sign in.

7. Released Time for Association Representatives

The Association representatives may use his/her daily planning period for Association business. In addition, the WTEA president or his/her designee will be released from duty without loss of pay to attend official meetings of the National Education Association, Ohio Education Association, and Central OEA/NEA, Inc. Such release time shall be limited to a maximum of four (4) days paid release time per contract year total. Other unpaid leave may also be granted by the Superintendent.

8. Labor Management Committee

The Superintendent and/or the Association President may call a meeting at a mutually agreeable time to deal with issues of concern. The Labor Management Committee will be comprised of the Superintendent, local Association President, and other persons either party deems appropriate.

Upon mutual agreement, one (1) day of training with release time for the members of the Labor Management Committee (LMC) under the auspices of the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS) shall be arranged pending the schedule of the federal mediator and the availability of substitute teachers.

The Labor Management Committee will try to resolve any issue before it becomes a major concern. The Superintendent and Association President will consult at least once each quarter to determine if a meeting is necessary.

C. INDIVIDUAL RIGHTS

- Neither the Board nor the Association shall discriminate against bargaining unit personnel on the basis of race, color, age, creed, national origin, sex, religion, handicap, sexual orientation or for the exercise of rights protected by the Constitution of the United States and the laws of the State of Ohio.
- The provision of this Agreement shall be applied uniformly to all teaching employees without regard to race, color, age, handicap, religious creed, sex, sexual orientation or national origin.
- The private life of a teacher is not within the appropriate concern or attention of the Board except as it may directly or indirectly prevent the teacher from properly performing his/her assigned functions during the work day.
- Bargaining unit members, administrators, and board members shall treat each other with professionalism and respect at all times including on social media.

ARTICLE III

NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURE

- Negotiations for a successor agreement shall be as otherwise noted herein.
- B. Negotiations for a successor agreement shall be opened ninety (90) to one hundred twenty (120) days before the expiration date of the current agreement.
- C. At the initial session, the parties shall exchange their detailed written proposals. No new items shall be submitted thereafter except upon mutual agreement of the teams.
- D. Before each negotiation session officially adjourns, the agenda, time, and place for the next session shall be mutually agreed upon by the chief negotiators.
- E. When negotiations are conducted during regular school hours, released time shall be provided for the Union's negotiations committee and President.
- F. There shall be six (6) signed copies of the final agreement. One (1) copy shall be retained by the Board, one (1) by the Association, one (1) shall be submitted to the State Employment Relations Board, one (1) to the WTEA President, one (1) to the Elementary Building Representative and one (1) to the High School Building Representative. Each bargaining unit member will have access to an electronic copy of the current contract at the WTEA opening meeting in the fall.
- G. Forty-five (45) days prior to the expiration of the current agreement, if the parties have items as yet unresolved, the parties shall jointly request the services of the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service. The assigned mediator shall have the authority to call meetings for the purpose of promoting an agreement between the parties. This provision shall constitute a modified impasse procedure to supersede ORC 4117.
- H. Mediation will continue until agreement is reached or until the Association exercises its right to strike upon expiration of the contract by serving the Board and the SERB with notice of its intent to do so ten (10) days prior to such action.
- The Association shall hold a ratification vote within ten (10) days of Tentative Agreement and the Board of Education shall hold a ratification vote within fifteen (15) days of Tentative Agreement.
- J. If during the life of this Agreement, bargaining for any reason is deemed necessary by the Board or the Association; the parties shall meet and bargain if mutually agreed in writing. If the parties are unable to reach agreement on any issue discussed during in-term bargaining within fifteen (15) days of the first bargaining session, impasse will be declared and the services of the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Services (FMCS) will be sought pursuant to Article III, Section G.
- K. The parties agree that any or all of the procedures contained in this Article may be amended at any time by written mutual agreement. Additionally, the parties may utilize Interest-

Based Bargaining or other alternative methods in lieu of traditional bargaining upon mutual agreement.

 The Board and the Association shall equally split all costs related to the printing of the agreement.

ARTICLE IV

GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

A. DEFINITIONS

- 1. "Association" shall mean the Walnut Township Education Association.
- 2. "Administration" shall mean the Superintendent and Principals.
- "Board of Education" and "Board" shall mean the Walnut Township Local Board of Education.
- 4. "Days" shall mean work days as determined by Article VII (F). In cases where a grievance filing would delay the timely processing until the following school year, the grievance may be processed during the summer by mutual agreement, considering the schedule of the grievant, Association representative and Administrator(s).
- "Grievance" shall mean a complaint involving the alleged violation, misrepresentation, or misapplication of the written provisions of the negotiated agreement between the Association and the Board of Education.
- "Grievant" shall mean a teacher(s) or the Association initiating a claim. No grievance will be filed without the advance knowledge of the affected unit members.
- 7. "Immediate Supervisor" shall mean that administrator having immediate supervisory responsibility over the grievant.
- 8. "Teacher" shall mean a member of the bargaining unit.

B. RIGHTS OF THE GRIEVANT AND THE ASSOCIATION

- A grievant may be accompanied at all times and at all steps of the grievance procedure by a representative of the Association.
- The purpose of these procedures is to secure, at the lowest level administrator having authority to resolve the grievance, equitable solutions to grievances.
- All parties agree that the grievances will be kept as confidential as is appropriate and processed as expeditiously as possible.

C. BOARD RIGHTS

- Any Administrator or Board of Education member required or permitted to conduct a hearing under this Article may be represented at such a hearing.
- Notice mailed, hand-delivered or emailed to the Association President shall be deemed notice to the Association for all purposes under this agreement.

D. TIME LIMITS

- In order that grievances may be processed as rapidly as possible, the number of
 days indicated at each level are maximum. Every effort will be made to expedite
 the procedures; however, the time limits may be extended in writing by mutual
 agreement of both parties. Absence of a party-in-interest will automatically provide
 a five (5) day extension.
- If the grievant does not file a grievance in writing within twenty (20) working days
 of the occurrence of the act or condition on which the grievance is based, or the
 time from which the act or occurrence could reasonably be known, then the
 grievance shall be considered waived.
- Failure at any step of these procedures to communicate the decision on a grievance within the specified time limits shall automatically entitle the grievant to proceed to the next level.
- 4. All notices of hearings, dispositions of grievances, written grievances, and appeals shall be in writing and hand delivered or mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested. The bargaining agent shall receive copies of all notices.
- 5. Hearings held under this procedure shall be conducted at a time and place which will afford a fair and equal opportunity for all persons entitled to be present to attend, exclusive of during the school day, other than the arbitration step which will be held at the time determined by the arbitrator.

E. INFORMAL PROCEDURE

Prior to initiating a grievance through the formal procedures contained in this agreement, the person or the Association claiming to have been aggrieved shall first meet and confer with the administrator whose actions gave rise to the alleged grievance. Such meeting will be held for the purpose of attempting to resolve the grievance at the lowest possible level. The grievant may be accompanied by an Association representative. In the event that a grievance is initiated at Step One without such meeting first having been held, the grievance will indicate that no such meeting was held and the reasons for not being held.

F. FORMAL PROCEDURE

 Step One: If the grievance is not resolved by the informal procedure, or if the grievant elects not to use the informal procedure, it may be pursued further by submitting a completed Grievance Report Form (See Appendix). A copy of this form shall be submitted by the grievant to the immediate supervisor. Within five (5) days of receipt of the Grievance Report Form, the immediate supervisor shall meet with the grievant and his/her Association representative. The immediate supervisor shall write a disposition of the grievance within five (5) days after such meeting by completing Step One of the Grievance Report Form and returning a copy to the grievant, Association, and the Superintendent.

- 2. Step Two A: If the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance in Step One, the grievant shall complete the Grievance Report Form, Step Two, and submit same to the Superintendent within ten (10) days of the receipt of its disposition at Step One. Within ten (10) school days of receipt of the grievance form, the Superintendent shall meet with the grievant and his/her Association representative. Within five (5) days of the meeting, the Superintendent shall write his/her disposition of the grievance by completing his/her portion of Step Two, forward a copy to the grievant, the Association, and the immediate supervisor.
- 3. Step Two B: The Superintendent or the Association has the option of initiating a Board level hearing for any grievance he/she deems appropriate. The hearing shall be held within ten (10) days after receiving the Superintendent's disposition of the grievance. A written decision will be forwarded to the grievant, the Association, and the Superintendent within five (5) days.
 - 4. <u>Step Three</u>: If the grievant and the Association are not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Step Two-A or Step Two-B, the Association and the Board may, within ten (10) days from the receipt of the Step Two answer jointly submit a request to the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS) for a mediator to assist the parties. If the mediation is requested, it shall be conducted prior to the selection of an arbitrator and all time limits for selection of the arbitrator and conduct of arbitration proceedings will be stayed until the termination or completion of the mediation proceedings.

A mediator shall have the authority to hold mediation sessions and to confer with any person deemed necessary to resolve the grievance. The function of the mediator shall be to offer suggestions, ideas, concepts, impressions, etc., for the purpose of moving both parties to a negotiated settlement of the grievance.

After a good faith effort to resolve the grievance through mediation, either party may terminate mediation.

5. <u>Step Four</u>: If the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Step Two-A or Step Two-B, the grievant, with the concurrence of the Association, may, within ten (10) days from the receipt of the Step Two answer, request a hearing before an arbitrator by completing Grievance Report Form, found in Step Three.

The grievant's request for arbitration shall be by certified mail with return receipt requested to the Superintendent. The grievant's designated representative shall petition the American Arbitration Association to provide both parties with a list of seven (7) names from which an arbitrator will be selected by the voluntary rules of the American Arbitration Association. Once the arbitrator has been selected, he/she shall conduct a hearing on the grievance in accordance with the rules and regulations of the American Arbitration Association. The arbitrator shall hold the necessary hearing promptly and issue the decision within such time as may be agreed upon. The decision shall be in writing and a copy sent to all parties present at the hearing. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on the Board, the Association, and the grievant. The arbitrator shall not have the authority to add to, subtract from, modify, change, or alter any of the provisions of this Collective Bargaining Contract nor add to, detract from, or modify the language therein. For non-renewal or termination, the professional judgment of the administrator shall not be subject to the arbitrator's decision in regards to evaluation content. All expenses for the arbitrator shall be shared equally by the Board and the Association.

A grievance may be withdrawn at any level without prejudice or record. At all levels, both formal and informal, the individual party (grievant, Association, Administration/ Board) shall be responsible for any representation cost.

ARTICLE V

LEAVES

A. GENERAL

Individuals on any approved unpaid leave may continue any and all of their group benefits for the duration of said leave providing they reimburse the Board for premium costs at the beginning of each month. This will be at no cost to the Board.

Should a bargaining unit member deem it necessary to request that an approved leave of absence be adjusted, the member should make such request to the Superintendent prior to the expiration of the leave. If a vacancy exists and upon approval of the Board, the employee will be allowed to return to work in the same position, if open, or for a position for which the member is certified.

Any member of the bargaining unit may be required to submit to an independent medical or psychological examination by a physician designated by the Board for the purpose of verifying any condition of illness or disability in connection with any leave request based on the illness or disability of the member upon return from leave. Any such examination will be conducted at the expense of the Board. Any member of the bargaining unit returning from disability leave or sick leave consisting of more than ten (10) consecutive days may be required to provide evidence of ability to return to duty.

All leaves are unpaid unless expressly designated as paid leaves in Article V. Unless otherwise provided, all leaves will be requested by written request submitted not less than

forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the commencement of the leave, except in cases of emergency and/or special consideration.

Any member whose leave extends through the end of the school year must provide written notice to the Superintendent of his/her intent to return to work the following school year by July 10th. If the member does not provide written notice of his/her intent to return to school the following year, it will be assumed that he/she does not intend to return and his/her position will be filled.

B. SICK LEAVE

- Unit members shall be granted sick leave at the rate of one and one- fourth (1 ¼)
 days per month in accordance with Ohio law.
- Sick leave shall be cumulative from year to year and shall accrue to an aggregate of two-hundred fifty-five (255) days.
- Unit members may be advanced the balance of sick leave days they would earn during that contract year if requested, provided that all accumulated sick leave has been exhausted.
- 4. In all cases where an advancement of sick leave days has been granted, a deduction for all unearned sick leave days used shall be made from the final pay of the individual for that contract year. Receipt of payment for sick leave not earned under the law, followed by failure to complete contractual obligations, shall result in a financial obligation to reimburse the Board of Education for any such overpayment.
- 5. A unit member whose sick leave and personal leave has been exhausted may receive additional sick leave days from other unit members who agree in writing to have such days deducted from their own accumulated sick leave and transferred to that unit member's account. The unit member shall notify the Treasurer in writing that they would like to request sick leave days from the sick leave bank. The Treasurer will solicit forms to staff for donation of days (Form C). The employee requesting a donation of sick leave cannot be given more than twenty (20) days in a contract year. Donated sick leave may not be used to delay the commencement of disability leave.
 - a. The Executive Committee of WTEA, along with the Treasurer of Walnut Township Schools, with one vote per member, will serve as the governing body to assure equitable treatment of all employees.
 - In no case shall this plan prevent or prolong a unit member's application for going on disability retirement.
 - c. The employee must use all personal leave and the statutory five days from Section 3319.141 of the Ohio Revised Code before receiving days from the sick leave donations.

- d. After the exhaustion of the original sick leave donations, if the donations were less than twenty (20) days in the contract year, employees may reapply for additional days, however if none are given then days must be taken without pay. Employees cannot be given more than a total of twenty (20) donated days in a contract year.
- e. Certified staff can only donate to other members of the certified classification of employees.

6. Sick leave may be used for:

a. Personal Illness or Injury

Leave (deducted from sick leave) may be allowed for illness, injury, exposure to a contagious disease which could be communicated to others, incapacitation due to physical and mental condition, doctor's appointments, and pregnancy disability.

For the purpose of this provision, disability is the period during which the bargaining unit member is not physically and/or mentally capable of performing all duties and functions of his/her position. The beginning date of disability and the termination of disability shall be established by written statement of the bargaining unit member's doctor. Examination and certification of continuing disability by a licensed physician of the Board's choosing may be required by the Superintendent, at Board expense, upon written notice to the bargaining unit member.

b. Family Illness or Injury

Leave (deductible from sick leave) each year may be allowed for illness or doctor's appointments in the teacher's family. Family shall be those residing under the same roof, blood or marital relatives, or others who are the responsibility of the teacher. Blood or marital relatives need not live with the teacher.

c. Death in the Family

A unit member shall be allowed to utilize sick leave credit for death in the employee's family. Such leave (deductible from sick leave) each year with full pay may be allowed for death in the teacher's family. Family shall be those residing under the same roof, blood or marital relatives, or others who are the responsibility of the teacher. Blood or marital relatives need not live with the teacher. Approval for use of sick leave due to death outside of the employee's family shall be requested of the Superintendent.

d. Adoption Leave

A unit member shall be allowed to utilize up to fifteen (15) days sick leave credit for the purposes of the member's adoption of a child. The leave must be taken immediately prior to or following adoption.

- Deduction of sick leave use will be in whole or half days. Deduction of sick leave shall not be made for those days when schools are closed.
- Use and accrual of sick leave days shall be reported on each pay stub issued a bargaining unit member.
- 9. Nothing in this Article precludes the unit member and the appropriate administrator from mutually agreeing to release time for meetings, doctor appointments, dentist appointments, etc., in small blocks of time (e.g., ½ hr., 1 hr., 1½ hr., etc.). This time will not be deducted from sick leave.

C. BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

Any bargaining unit member is entitled to three (3) days of bereavement leave per contract year. Once the three (3) days have been exhausted, additional days may be approved by the Superintendent and will be deducted from sick leave.

D. PERSONAL LEAVE

- All full-time bargaining unit employees shall be entitled to three (3) unrestricted days of personal leave in any school year, without loss of pay.
- All personal leave granted under the provisions of this policy will be either for one

 (1) full day or one-half (½) day.
- Personal leave shall not be used for absences which are covered by another type of paid leave. Upon exhaustion of sick leave balance to zero, personal leave may be used.
- 4. Personal leave for employees who work on a part-time schedule shall be equal to the number of hours in their regular daily schedule. (i.e., an employee who regularly works three (3) hours per day may receive nine (9) hours per year.
- 5. Personal leave shall be limited to no more than two (2) teachers per building on any one (1) day. Personal leave shall not normally be granted on the day of opening teacher meetings, the first five (5) work days and the last five (5) work days of the school year, except in cases of emergency or request of special consideration as determined by the Superintendent.

Requests for personal leave in each building will be date and time stamped and signed by the principal. The first two (2) requests for any day per building will be granted leave by the Superintendent.

- 6. Requests for personal leave should be submitted to the building principal on the proper form at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the requested leave except in case of emergency. In cases of emergency, the employee shall notify his building principal as soon as possible that he will not be in attendance. It is also the responsibility of the employee to document his use of personal leave immediately following the emergency use.
- At the end of each fiscal year each member's unused personal leave days shall be added to the member's sick leave accumulation.
- If a member is going to be docked due to absences exceeding personal days, they
 will meet with the Treasurer on a case by case basis to determine how dock will be
 deducted from their pay.

E. PROFESSIONAL LEAVE

Professional leave days will be allowed teachers for professional meetings and visits to other schools at the discretion of the Superintendent. Such requests shall be in writing, using the appropriate form, at least three (3) days prior to the proposed leave day(s). The determination shall be based upon the professional growth needs of the teacher, contributions to the development of the profession, and the value to the school district. Such leave is also subject to budget controls (as will be the reimbursement for expenses while on such leave) and the availability of an appropriate substitute if needed.

Necessary meals, excluding gratuities, not covered by a conference registration, while on short-term, paid professional leave shall be reimbursed up to the following maximums:

Breakfast	\$5.00
Lunch	\$10.00
Dinner	\$15.00

F. SABBATICAL LEAVE

Sabbatical leave of absence for study and research shall be granted by the Board to full-time, annually contracted teachers under the following conditions:

- In order to apply for sabbatical leave, the teacher must be properly certificated in his/her area of instruction, and must have completed five (5) consecutive years of regular employment in the Walnut Township Local School District immediately prior to application.
- Each year up to two members of the eligible teaching staff may be granted such sabbatical leave of absence.
- The applicant must not have been granted a sabbatical leave of absence from the Walnut Township Local School District during the seven (7) consecutive years of service immediately preceding current application.

- 4. The applicant must sign an agreement to return to service in the Walnut Township Local School District immediately upon termination of the sabbatical leave and continue in such service for a period of two (2) years, or to refund all of the compensation received from the Walnut Township Local School District during the sabbatical leave of absence.
- All provisions of the Ohio Revised Code, Section §3319.131, shall be adhered to by all parties except as further provided under Sabbatical leave in this Professional Agreement.
 - If the substitute (replacement) teacher's pay is less than the pay of the regular teacher who is on leave, the teacher on leave shall receive one half (1/2) the difference.
- 6. Application for sabbatical leave shall be made in writing to the Superintendent not later than March 15 or October 15, preceding the school semester within which the leave is desired. The application shall include an acceptable plan for spending the leave in a manner of study and research calculated to contribute to the professional effectiveness of the applicant as a teacher and to the best interests of the school system.
- 7. A teacher on sabbatical leave shall not render teaching service for compensation in another educational institution, provided, however, that this shall not preclude the acceptance of a fellowship or other assistance in research.
- Upon completion of sabbatical leave, the teacher shall file within sixty (60) days
 with the Superintendent a written report of his/her educational pursuits while on
 sabbatical leave.
- The teacher returning from sabbatical leave shall be placed on the salary schedule reflecting earned credits and with no loss of longevity steps due to the leave.
- 10. The teacher returning from sabbatical leave shall be placed in a teaching position comparable to the one held prior to going on leave.
- 11. A teacher on sabbatical may receive all Board group insurance benefits during the duration of the sabbatical at the employee's expense. The employee shall make the appropriate payment to the Board Treasurer on the first of each month.

G. MANDATORY COURT APPEARANCES AND JURY SERVICE

The Board will grant leave with pay to those members of the bargaining unit in the case of jury duty. If on jury duty, pay for days of such absences shall be based on the difference between the employee's regular compensation and the remuneration received for serving as a juror, exclusive of mileage paid by the court. The Board will also grant leave with pay to those members of the bargaining unit when subpoenaed or required to make a court appearance (other than for personal criminal prosecution) for Walnut Township Local

School related matters provided that the bargaining unit member's court appearance is not in connection with a matter adverse to the position of the Board.

H. MATERNITY/PATERNITY/CHILDCARE/ADOPTION LEAVE

- A bargaining unit member has the right to apply for an unpaid leave of absence for the purpose of maternity/paternity/child care/or adoption. Except that during the period of maternity disability, the bargaining unit member is entitled to use sick leave.
- A bargaining unit member requesting unpaid leave for maternity/paternity/child care/or adoption may apply for such leave with sixty (60) days' notice, or as early as possible, to the Superintendent of the proposed commencement of such leave. Such notification may be amended as circumstances warrant.
- 3. Such unpaid leave may be renewable, by semester, for up to four (4) semesters, at the bargaining unit member's option and upon the Superintendent's approval. An employee must specify, to the Superintendent, the date they are returning to work (provided a long term substitute has not been hired to replace the teacher on leave) and provide a note from a physician indicating they are physically and/or mentally capable of performing the necessary duties and functions of his/her position.
- 4. During such leave, the bargaining unit member shall have the option to continue any/all benefits at the group rate, provided appropriate payment is made by the employee to the Board Treasurer on the first of each month.

I. UNPAID DISABILITY LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Upon the receipt of a written request documented with a physician's statement from a bargaining unit member, the Board of Education may grant an unpaid disability leave of absence for a period of not more than one (1) school year or for a remainder of the current school year. However, such leave may be renewable from year to year upon annual resubmission of a written leave request accompanied by a physician's certification of the continuing disability.

For the purpose of this policy, disability is the period during which the employee is not physically and/or mentally capable of performing the necessary duties and functions of his/her position. The beginning date of disability and the termination of disability shall be established by written statement of the employee's doctor.

Examination and certification of the continuing disability by a licensed physician chosen by the Board may be required by the Superintendent, at Board expense, upon written notice to the bargaining unit member.

Upon the return to service of the employee at the expiration of the leave of absence, the employee shall resume the contract status which the employee held prior to such leave.

The employee shall not earn pay or sick leave during the period of disability leave of absence.

The employee may receive all Board group insurance benefits during the duration of the disability leave of absence at the employee's expense. The employee shall make the appropriate payment to the Board Treasurer on the first of each month.

J. MILITARY LEAVE

Teachers shall be granted military leave in compliance with Ohio Revised Code Sections §3319.14 and 5923.05.

K. ASSAULT LEAVE

In case of an assault on a teacher, arising out of and in the course of the teacher's employment whether or not on or off school property, including co-curricular activities, which results in the teacher's being disabled from performing teaching duties for which the teacher is qualified, the Board shall grant paid leave, that shall not be charged against the teacher's sick leave accumulation, through the first twenty-five (25) days of absence. The Board will require an examination and certificate from a licensed physician chosen and paid by the Board that the teacher is disabled from performance of teaching duties and the nature and duration of such disability prior to the Board advancing up to an additional 30 days.

ARTICLE VI

JOB SECURITY - TEACHING CONTRACTS

A. SEQUENCE OF LIMITED CONTRACTS

- Limited contracts, issued to all bargaining unit members who do not qualify for and who do not hold a continuing contract, shall be, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent for reemployment, as follows:
 - a. The initial limited contract offered to bargaining unit members new to the Walnut Township Schools (except teachers hired to fill vacancies occurring during the school year or as substitute teachers) shall be for a term of one (1) school year. Teachers hired during the school year to fill vacancies shall be offered contracts for the remainder of that school year.
 - b. Upon completion of the first contract of employment in the Walnut Township Schools, such teacher, if re-employed, shall receive a second limited contract for a term of one (1) year.
 - c. Upon completion of the second contract of employment in the Walnut Township Schools, such teacher, if re-employed, shall receive a third limited contract for a term of one (1) year.

- d. Upon completion of the third consecutive one (1) year limited contract of employment in the Walnut Township Schools, such teacher, if re-employed, shall receive a limited contract for a term of three (3) years.
- Upon completion of the first three (3) year limited contract of employment in the Walnut Township Schools, such teacher, if re-employed, shall receive a limited contract for a term of five (5) years.
- f. Each subsequent limited contract such teacher receives, if re-employed, shall be for a term of five (5) years.
- g. The Board may interrupt the above sequence upon the recommendation of the Superintendent resulting from the evaluation procedure and grant not more than two (2) successive one (1) year probationary contracts. In granting a probationary contract, the following procedure will be utilized:
 - The Superintendent/designee will notify the unit member of written reasons directed at such improvements. The Board will notify the unit member by June 1 of its action on the Superintendent's recommendation.
- h. It is agreed that probationary contracts will be for only one (1) year in length. The Superintendent reserves the right to recommend a subsequent probationary one (1) year contract.
- Upon correction of the identified deficiencies the bargaining unit member shall be returned to the limited contract sequence that was interrupted.

B. NON-RENEWAL OF LIMITED CONTRACTS

The below stated procedures relative to non-renewal of limited contracts shall prevail. Just cause applies at the beginning of the fourth (4th) contract.

- 1. The Superintendent shall, on or before June 1, deliver to the teacher, a written notification that the intent of the Superintendent is to recommend to the Board of Education that the teacher will not be re-employed at the expiration date of the limited contract. Reasons for the decision to non-renew must be stated in the letter, and must be supported by evidence contained in the teacher's evaluation file. The evaluation file shall be open for the inspection of the teacher and/or his/her designated representative at all times.
- In the event that the teacher desires a hearing before the Board, the teacher shall deliver, or cause to be delivered, an original copy of the request to the President of the Board and copies to the Treasurer of the Board and Superintendent.
- The Board shall honor a request for the specified hearing. A hearing date shall be scheduled within ten (10) days after the receipt of the request. The Board shall notify the teacher in writing of the date, time, and place.

- The hearing shall be of a private nature and shall be conducted in executive session of the Board.
- The teacher shall have the right to be accompanied and to be represented by a representative at the hearing.
- If the Board overrules the recommendation of the Superintendent for renewal, written reasons must be given for the non-renewal by the Board.
- 7. Notwithstanding the provisions of Ohio Revised Code 3319.11 and 3319.111 or the foregoing requirements, the Board and the Association have agreed that the sole requirement for the non-renewal of any of the initial three (3) limited contracts with the District shall be non-renewal by action of the Board and written notice to the teacher not later than June 1 of the year of contract expiration. Any teacher whose limited employment contract is non-renewed within that period of time shall not be entitled to a written statement of reasons, a post non-renewal hearing before the Board, grievance or any other process of any kind.
- Any decisions for non-renewal beginning with the fourth contract must be based on just cause.

C. CONTINUING CONTRACT

- Continuing contracts are governed by Section §3319.11 of the Ohio Revised Code and will be awarded in accordance with that section of the law.
- The Board shall adhere to the laws of the State of Ohio in regard to continuing contracts and teacher tenure.

D. INABILITY TO CONDUCT EVALUATION

A teacher who is unavailable for evaluation due to a leave of absence or extended sick leave in the year of contract expiration shall be awarded a one (1) year limited contract for the subsequent year, regardless of eligibility for any other contract unless mutually agreed otherwise.

E. CONTRARY TO LAW

The parties expressly intend that any provisions of this article which are contrary to the laws of the State of Ohio as presently enacted or which may be enacted or amended during the term of this contract shall be superseded by this Article.

F. REDUCTION IN FORCE

When the Board determines that staff reductions shall occur, it may effectuate such reductions by means of a reduction in force. As used in this Article, "reduction in force" means the suspension of contracts in the affected teaching fields as set forth in Ohio Revised Code Section 3319.17 and this Article. "Reduction in force," as used herein, does

not refer to or include contract non-renewals as set forth in Ohio Revised Code Section 3319.11.

Reduction in force shall be in accordance with the provisions of Ohio Revised Code Section 3319.17 and shall be for one or more of the following reasons:

- 1. A decline in enrollment;
- A return to duty of a unit member from leave of absence;
- The suspension of schools;
- Territorial changes affecting the District;
- Financial reasons.

a. SENIORITY LIST

All unit members shall be placed on a seniority list in their areas of certification, subject to the following rules. Unit members shall be placed on all lists for which they are certified (temporary certifications excluded). "Seniority" shall be defined in the following manner:

- All unit members on continuing contracts have seniority over unit members on limited contracts.
- Otherwise, seniority is determined by the length of continuous service in the Walnut Township Local School District. Among those with the same length of continuous service, seniority shall be determined by:
 - a. the date of the Board meeting at which the unit member was hired, and then by,
 - the date on which the unit member submitted a completed job application.
- Length of continuous service will not be interrupted or affected by authorized leaves of absence.
- 4. The continuous service of a unit member who has returned to employment following a resignation, reduction in force, or contract termination will be measured from the date of return unless the return occurs in the school year immediately following or returning from RIF, in which case the unit member's service will be considered to be uninterrupted. Substitute teaching for less than one hundred twenty (120) days in a school year, does not constitute a "return" within the meaning of this Article.

Retired/re-hired teachers will not accrue seniority.

b. ATTRITION

The Board will attempt to keep the number of persons affected by a reduction in force to a minimum by not employing replacements for employees who retire, resign, succumb to death, or whose limited contracts are not renewed as per Ohio Revised Code Section 3319.11.

c. SUSPENSION OF CONTRACTS

Reductions not achieved through attrition may be made by the suspension of contracts.

REDUCTION IN FORCE - PROCEDURES

When the Board determines that it shall implement a reduction in force, the following shall apply:

Before implementing a reduction in force, the Board shall give written notice to the Association, through its President, of its intent to affect a reduction in force. The Association shall be given the opportunity to address the Board in an open meeting during the next regularly scheduled meeting for the purpose of presenting, both orally and in writing, its views on the proposed reduction in force.

The Board shall proceed to suspend contracts in accordance with the recommendations of the Superintendent. Affected unit members shall be given written notice thirty (30) days prior to Board action of the Board's intent to suspend the contract or no later than May 15th. Within each area of certification affected by the reduction in force, contracts shall be suspended pursuant to the recommendations of the Superintendent who shall give preference to those unit members who have been rated higher on their summative evaluations and, within each rating, to those unit members who have continuing contracts. For unit members who have comparable summative evaluations, preference shall be given based on seniority.

Comparable evaluations shall be defined as follows:

- a. Unit members shall be placed in one (1) of three (3) groups for the purpose of a reduction in force, as described below. These groups shall be called "Group One," "Group Two," and "Group Three." Members within each group shall be deemed "comparable," except that members under continuing contracts shall be given preference over all members under limited contracts within the same Group.
 - Group One shall be comprised of all members who were rated "Ineffective" on their final summative evaluation using the calculation set forth below;

- Group Two shall be comprised of all members who were rated "Developing" on their final summative evaluation using the calculation set forth below; and
- iii. Group Three shall be comprised of all members who were rated "Skilled" or "Accomplished" on their final summative evaluation using the calculation set forth below.
- Any reduction in force shall begin with members in Group One, followed by Group Two, and finally, Group Three.
- c. Teachers shall be placed in the three groups based upon an average of the three (3) most recent final summative evaluation ratings calculated as follows:
 - Ratings of Accomplished shall equal four (4) points;
 - ii. Ratings of Skilled shall equal three (3) points;
 - iii. Ratings of Developing shall equal two (2) points;
 - iv. Ratings of Ineffective shall equal one (1) point.
- d. The sum of teachers' most recent three (3) years' final summative evaluation ratings shall be added together, divided by three (3), and rounded to the nearest whole number to find the "average" rating. The teacher shall then be placed in the appropriate Group based on his/her average rating. For example, a teacher rated Developing, Skilled, and Skilled in the most recent three (3) years would be placed in Group Three (2+3+3 = 8 / 3 = 2.666 which is rounded to 3 = Skilled).
- e. Experienced teachers new to the District shall have their final summative evaluation ratings from their prior district used in the calculation. First and second year teachers shall have their evaluation ratings averaged. Third year teachers shall have their two (2) years' scores from their final rating averaged for placement in the appropriate Group.
- f. Teachers rated Accomplished and who are evaluated once every three (3) years shall be deemed to be Accomplished (i.e., shall receive 4 points) for the years in which they are not formally evaluated. Teachers rated Skilled and who are evaluated once every three (3) years shall be deemed to be Skilled (i.e., shall receive 3 points) for the years in which they are not formally evaluated.
- g. During implementation of a RIF, no reassignment or transfer shall occur that will cause a more senior unit member to be laid off before a less senior unit member.

h. Unit members placed on the RIF list may continue with the District's group insurance policies for the full length of time on the RIF list notifying the Treasurer, in writing, prior to the receipt of their last paycheck, and by paying the full premium on those policies they wish to keep in force, provided that such is consistent with COBRA.

Reduction in force shall be implemented at the end of a work year only.

A unit member who is certified in multiple areas and whose contract has been suspended may elect to replace or "bump" another unit member with a lower final summative evaluation rating in an area of certification unaffected by the RIF, or if the other unit member in an unaffected area of certification has a comparable final summative evaluation rating, he/she may be bumped if he/she has less seniority. The unit member "bumped" must have the lowest final summative evaluation rating and be the least senior unit member in the unaffected area of certification.

Unit members whose contracts have been suspended shall be placed on a Reduction in Force (RIF) list. Unit members employed under continuing contracts at the time of contract suspension may remain on the RIF list for a period of five (5) years. Unit members employed under limited contracts at the time of contract suspension may remain on the RIF list for a period of thirty-six (36) months after the contract suspension.

A unit member whose name appears on the RIF list shall be recalled when a position becomes available for which he/she is certified (temporary certifications excluded). Within a given area of certification, such offers are to be made in the reverse order of layoff. No new unit members may be employed by the Board while there are unit members on the RIF list who are certified (temporary certifications excluded) for the opening in question. Unit members who have acquired a new area of certification after being laid off shall be considered/interviewed for any vacancy not filled by recall in the area of certification they acquired after they were laid off.

The Board shall give written notice of an offer of recall by sending a registered or certified letter to said unit member at his/her last known address. It shall be the responsibility of each unit member to notify the Board of any change in address. The unit member's address, as it appears on the Board's records, shall be conclusive when used in connection with an offer or other notice to the unit member. If a unit member fails to accept the offer of recall in writing within fifteen (15) calendar days, excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays (or within five (5) days, if the offer is delivered within ten (10) days prior to the start of a school year or semester) from the date said offer is delivered at the last known address of the unit member, said unit member shall be considered to have rejected said offer and shall be removed from the RIF list. No unit member whose continuing contract has been suspended shall be removed by the RIF list by reason of having declined recall to a position requiring a lesser percentage of full-time employment than the position the unit member last held while employed in the district.

A unit member on the RIF list upon accepting an offer shall return to the system with the same seniority, accumulation of sick leave days, and salary schedule placement as the unit member had at the time of contract suspension.

After being removed from the RIF list, a unit member must make application for employment in accordance with established procedures if he/she so desires to be considered for re-employment by the school district.

G. AVAILABILITY OF SENIORITY AND REDUCTION IN FORCE LISTS

Both the seniority lists and the Reduction in Force (RIF) lists described in this Article shall be made available to the Association President, the Treasurer, and each building principal.

ARTICLE VII

TERMS & CONDITIONS

A. PERSONNEL FILES

1. Location and Maintenance

The official personnel file system for all employees shall be kept and administered by the Superintendent.

2. <u>Contents of Personnel Files</u>

The official personnel file shall contain the following to the extent that such records are retained:

- Application for employment.
- Confidential pre-employment references.
- Transcripts of training and education records.
- Copies of current, valid certificates and/or licenses.
- Copies of the evaluations of the employee performance made by the supervisory personnel.
- Employee response to the evaluation.
- Such information as may be required by state or federal government.
- Anonymous material or material from an unidentified source will not be placed in a personnel file.
- Information relative to compensation and payroll deductions will be kept by the Treasurer in a separate but related file.

4. All personnel records of individual employees of the Board will be considered confidential; however, the law requires that all public records be promptly prepared and made available for inspection to any member of the general public at all reasonable times during regular business hours. Upon written request, the person responsible for maintenance of the public records is required to make copies available, at cost, within a reasonable period of time.

Bargaining unit member shall be notified of such written request within five (5) days of such request.

All requests to review the personnel files of any bargaining unit member will be administered under the terms and conditions contained in the Privacy Act, Chapter 1347 of the Ohio Revised Code.

- 5. The public will have access to all records in the personnel file with the following exceptions:
 - Medical records;
 - b. Records pertaining to adoption, probation, or parole proceedings;
 - Trial preparation records;
 - Confidential law enforcement investigatory records;
 - Records of which the release is prohibited by State or Federal law and records that are not "public records" under R.C. 149.43.
- 6. Access to the official personnel file shall be available during the regular office hours to the employee and/or his/her representative. The review of such personnel file shall be in the presence of the Superintendent or his/her designee. Neither the file nor any part thereof shall be removed from the Board of Education office.
- 7. Each member of the bargaining unit shall have the right to respond in writing to any material contained in the file which would be generally considered as detrimental to the professional interest of such teacher and have the response attached to the specific material. Upon written request of the bargaining unit member, record of disciplinary nature shall be removed from the personnel file after seven (7) years if there have been no other intervening incidents.
- 8. Each member of the bargaining unit shall have the right to indicate those documents and/or other materials in his/her personnel file which he/she believes to be obsolete, inappropriate, and/or inaccurate. The member shall have the right to request that the obsolete, inappropriate, and/or inaccurate materials be removed from the file and destroyed. Such requests shall be investigated by the Superintendent and the Board.

If the investigation indicates that there is evidence that certain material in the teacher's file is irrelevant, inappropriate, incorrect, or obsolete, such material shall be removed from the file or corrected so long as such action is not prohibited by law.

B. SCHOOL DAY

The work day for members of the bargaining unit, inclusive of at least duty-free continuous thirty (30) minute lunch period, shall be:

Elementary 7 hrs. 25 minutes Middle and High School 7 hrs. 25 minutes

Building principals shall have the authority to vary building starting and ending times in the best interest of the building instructional program and consistent with Board of Education guidelines.

C. FACULTY MEETINGS

Scheduled faculty meetings during the school year shall not exceed two (2) per month. Attendance at emergency meetings is voluntary.

The Association and the administration will jointly and cooperatively plan for in-service, innovative training, curriculum, etc. Up to four (4) times a year the Board will shorten the student day, either by early dismissal or late start. All services (excluding new teacher orientation) shall be scheduled during the teacher work day.

Bargaining unit members will attend staff meetings up to one (1) hour beyond the normal work day. In any month that bargaining unit members attend in-service, training, curriculum, etc., then there will be only one (1) faculty meeting for that month. In case of emergency, a meeting can be called; attendance is voluntary at emergency meetings.

D. FACULTY PASSES

All bargaining unit members shall present a school ID to admit them free of admission charge to all sports, musical, and drama events sponsored by the Walnut Township Schools.

E. PLANNING/GRADING TIME

Senior/Junior High - One (1) full class period per day, while students are present for all full-time employees.

Elementary - One (1) planning period daily, with a minimum of forty (40) minutes which shall include any and all time students are in specials (music, physical education, library, etc.).

The parties agree that the Superintendent will make every effort to provide elementary teachers with the same amount of early release time as is provided for high school teachers for the purposes of grading, provided this can be legally accomplished within the bounds of the current school calendar.

F. SCHOOL YEAR/SCHOOL CALENDAR

The school calendar for the ensuing school year will be prepared by the Superintendent and calendar committee and presented to the Board of Education for approval in the spring of each year. The number of days scheduled for students shall be one hundred eighty-one (181) days or exceeding by one (1) day the requirements by state law.

The Superintendent and calendar committee shall develop one or more suggested school calendars for the next school year. Make up calamity days, if needed, will be scheduled to begin after the last regularly scheduled school day. If needed, additional days of instruction may be provided by digital lessons or provision of Blizzard Bags in accordance with ORC 3313.482 or any successor statute under the plan adopted by the Board each school year. The Superintendent will convene a school calendar committee including the Association President or designee, an additional association representative, Superintendent, administrator of Superintendent selection and Superintendent secretary prior to making a calendar recommendation to the Board of Education for adoption.

The total work days for teachers and students will not exceed one hundred eighty-four (184) days except for teachers new to the district who shall work one (1) additional day at the beginning of their first year in the district so designated "New Teacher Orientation Meetings" on the calendar. If, however, the State of Ohio mandates additional school days, negotiations will be re-opened.

G. PUBLIC COMPLAINT PROCEDURE

When a complaint is made to the Board or any of its members or administrators by a student's parents or any other member of the public concerning a teacher's conduct or other activities that relate to the teacher's employment duties, and the concern is thought to be serious enough to become a matter of record, the teacher shall be informed of the stated concern by the appropriate administrator. Anonymous complaints will be disregarded.

Complaints about bargaining unit members shall be processed by the Board and its administrators as follows:

- Complainant shall first discuss the complaint with the teacher or teachers involved.
- 2 If the Complainant is not satisfied, with the result in Step 1, the Complainant shall be directed to put the complaint in writing. Next, the Complainant shall be required to meet with the building administrator and the teacher(s) involved.
- If the Complainant is not satisfied with the result in Step 2, the Complainant shall be directed to meet with the Superintendent, building administrator, and the teacher(s) involved.

 If the Complainant is not satisfied with the result in Step 3, the Complainant shall be directed to contact the Superintendent to be placed on the next Board agenda for an executive session.

Should the complaining party bring the concern to the Board, the teacher shall be so informed and have the right to provide the Board information concerning the issue.

In no case shall such a complaint be grounds for action or reprimands or discipline against a teacher without the teacher having prior notice that would allow a minimum of seven (7) school days for the teacher to attempt to resolve the concern or provide information on the issue to the administration.

The above procedures shall not apply if the complaint alleges sexual harassment against a teacher. In that case, the procedures in the district's policies regarding sexual harassment complaints shall apply.

H. TEACHER EVALUATION PROCEDURES

The term "evaluation" is used to describe the philosophy, criteria, and procedures by which professional judgments are made regarding each teacher's performance.

Purpose:

- To serve as a tool to advance the professional development of teachers;
- b. To inform instruction;
- To assist teachers and administrators in identifying and developing best educational practices in order to provide the greatest opportunity for student learning and achievement;
- d. To aid in objective self-analysis;
- To establish goals;
- f. to provide information for establishing contract status, retention, and promotion;
- g. to assist the teacher in implementing the prescribed curriculum.

2. Definitions:

Full Evaluation Cycle--The period of time for the completion of the evaluation procedure. The evaluation cycle includes:

- Professional Growth Plan/Improvement Plan
- One formal holistic observation followed by a conference

- At least two (2) classroom walkthroughs with an emphasis on identified focus area(s) when applicable
- One formal focused observation with an emphasis on identified focus area(s)
- One final summative conference

Evaluation Instrument--The forms used by the teacher's evaluator. Forms utilized will be located on the district website.

Evaluation Procedure—The procedural requirements set forth in this agreement to provide specificity to the statutory obligations established under sections 3319.111 and 3319.112 of the Ohio Revised Code and to conform to the framework for the evaluation of teachers developed under section 3319.112 of the Ohio Revised Code.

High-Quality Student Data (HQSD) – Teachers shall use at least two measures of high quality student data (HQSD) to demonstrate student learning. When value-added data is available for a teachers, it must be one of the forms of high quality student data used in the evaluation. HQSD is aligned to learning standards, measure what is intended to be measured, be attributable to a specific teacher for course(s) and grade level(s) taught, demonstrate evidence of student learning (achievement and/or growth), follow protocols for administration and scoring, provide trustworthy results, and not offend or be driven by bias. HQSD must be approved by the local HQSD Approval Committee.

Poorly Performing Teacher—A teacher who continues to receive an overall summative rating of ineffective after receiving an ineffective rating for a period of no less than two out of the last three years, who takes the written examination required pursuant to section 3319.58 of the Ohio Revised Code, and who completes a improvement plan during the subsequent school year.

Improvement Plan-- A written plan which shall be collaboratively put into place with the teacher and the assigned credentialed evaluator, in order to directly address any deficiencies cited in the evidence that is gathered during walkthroughs and formal observations.

Teacher Performance— The assessment of a teacher's performance, resulting in a performance rating. As an evaluation factor, the teacher performance dimension is based on direct observations of a teacher's practice (including materials and other instructional artifacts) and walkthroughs that are performed by a credentialed evaluator.

Evaluators

a. For the purposes of this article, the "evaluating administrator" must be a full-time, credentialed administrator who is an employee under contract with the district. The district will make every effort to ensure the respective building principal is the credentialed evaluator.

- b. In the event a teacher performs work under the supervision of more than one building administrator, one building administrator will be designated as the evaluating building administrator but evidence-based input from both building administrators will be included in the teachers' evaluation. The decision will be based on one of the following:
 - Building where the majority of the teacher time is spent.
 - If time spent is equivalent, the teacher shall select the evaluating building administrator.
- c. In assessing a teacher's performance, evaluators will not make judgments, or otherwise discriminate, on the basis of a teacher's age, gender identification, race, ethnicity, national origin, religion, sexual orientation, marital status, military status, disability, union membership or union activism.

4. Data Collection

Data collection shall consist of informal walkthroughs, classroom observations and High-Quality Student Data (HQSD). Additional data may be supplied by the teacher up to two (2) days after the post-conference or walkthrough, unless deadlines require an earlier submission.

 The evaluation procedures contained herein shall be the sole procedure utilized in the Walnut Township Local Schools and shall supersede Section §3319.111 of the Ohio Revised Code (ORC) as permitted by law.

6. Teacher Goals:

If a teacher's final, summative rating from the previous year was Accomplished, Skilled, or Developing, they shall begin each school year on a Professional Growth Plan. If a teacher's final, summative rating from the previous year was Ineffective, they shall begin the school year on an Improvement Plan. If during the evaluation cycle, a teacher is identified as at risk of a final summative rating of Ineffective, the credentialed evaluator may implement an Improvement Plan immediately. An evaluating administrator/teacher conference shall be held prior to September 30 of each year for the purpose of establishing teacher individual goals for attainment during the remaining school year. The goal(s) for the Professional Growth Plan goal may be based on the evaluating administrator's area of refinement from the previous year's evaluation cycle or the Summary Self-Assessment Tool. If completing an Improvement Plan, the goals must be based on the evaluating administrator's area of growth from the previous year.

 Teacher Evaluation: Each teacher shall be evaluated according to the procedural requirements set forth in this agreement to provide specificity to the statutory obligations established under sections 3319.111 and 3319.112 of the Ohio Revised Code and to conform to the framework for the evaluation of teachers developed under section 3319.112 of the Ohio Revised Code:

a. Teacher Performance

The assessment of a teacher's performance results in a performance rating. As an evaluation factor, the teacher performance dimension is based on direct observations and walkthroughs that are performed by a credentialed building administrator.

- A teacher's performance shall be assessed based on the standards for the teaching profession and the criteria set forth in the evaluation instrument.
- No teacher shall be evaluated on his or her work performance except based on the observations of the teacher by the teacher's assigned evaluator and the walkthroughs that are set forth in this agreement, and evidence provided by the teacher evaluator during the course of the evaluation procedures.
- All monitoring or observation of the work performance of a teacher shall be conducted openly and with full knowledge of the teacher.
- 4. No misleading, inaccurate, untimely or undocumented information may become part of a teacher's performance evaluation. All results and conclusions of performance evaluations must be documented and supported by evidence.
- In implementing performance evaluations, the District shall conduct all evaluations so as to observe the legal and constitutional rights of teachers, and no teacher performance information shall be collected by electronic devices without the consent of the teacher.

Schedule of Observation

All observations shall be consistent with the terms of this Agreement. A minimum of one (1) formal observations shall be conducted to support each performance evaluation. A formal observation shall last a minimum of thirty (30) consecutive minutes. There shall be at least six (6) weeks between formal observations. If after the first formal observation, a teacher's performance is found deficient to the extent that adverse personnel action may result, a minimum of one additional observation shall be conducted.

The evaluator involved shall make written recommendations at the postobservation conference or formal debriefing and otherwise assist the teacher for the purpose of remediation of identified deficiencies. The evaluator and teacher shall develop a plan for improvement of identified deficiencies at the post-observation conference or formal debriefing and such plan shall be reduced to writing and provided to the teacher within three (3) working days following the post-observation conference or formal debriefing.

If only one observation is being done for the teacher, it will be conducted by May 1st.

When two observations are being done, the first observation will be conducted by January 15 with the post conference being conducted with the teacher no later than 10 school days after the observation but no later than January 25. The second observation will be conducted by May 1 with the post conference conducted with the teacher no later than 10 school days after the observation but no later than May 10. If a teacher is out on leave the date of a scheduled post conference, it is the teacher's responsibility, within three (3) school days of return, to reschedule with their evaluator or the evaluation will be provided in writing without teacher input.

Walkthroughs—A walkthrough is an informal observation that is a tool to inform evaluation that provides the opportunity to gather evidence of instruction over a series of short classroom visits. The teacher shall be provided a copy of the walkthrough form B no later than two (2) workdays following the walkthrough. At the request of the teacher, a formal debriefing shall occur no later than two (2) workdays after the walkthrough to discuss observations noted. No more than two (2) walkthroughs shall be conducted in each evaluation cycle. Walkthroughs shall not disrupt and/or interrupt the learning environment in the classroom.

c. Observation Conference

A pre-observation conference will precede formal observations if requested by the teacher or evaluator. Notes of classroom observation(s) will be provided to the teacher at the post-observation conference following each observation. Post-observation conferences will follow the observation. The observations provided for herein shall be planned for a minimum of thirty (30) minutes duration.

Observations of classroom performance shall not be conducted the day prior to Thanksgiving, Christmas, or spring break, or, when the employee has had an extended absence of one (1) week or more, within two (2) working days of his/her return.

Results of all of the observations conducted by the evaluator shall be scored based on a Teacher Performance Evaluation Rubric. The results from the Rubric scores will be combined, if applicable, to create the Cumulative Teacher Performance Rating as reported on the Final Summative Rating of

Teacher Effectiveness. The teacher may provide additional information to the evaluator that shall become part of the Summative Record up to two (2) days after the post-conference or walkthrough, unless deadlines require an earlier submission.

d. Improvement Plan

The evaluating administrator who identifies, based on evidence, that a teacher's performance to be rated as Ineffective during classroom observations or the evaluation process shall set forth in writing.

- Formal observations and/or walkthroughs resulting in the identification of performance deficiencies shall be addressed during the post-observation conference or the formal debriefing following a walkthrough. All deficiencies identified by the evaluator shall be compiled and reported in writing and a copy of the written report shall be provided to the teacher at the post-observation conference or formal debriefing.
- The evaluator involved shall make recommendations and otherwise assist the teacher for the purpose of improvement of identified deficiencies.
- The evaluator and teacher shall develop a plan for improvement of identified deficiencies and such plan shall be in writing and provided to the teacher.
- The improvement plan, as outlined in this section, shall detail:
 - Performance issues documented as deficient;
 - Specific performance expectations;
 - The allocation of financial and other resources and assistance to be provided by the District to support professional development of the teacher;
 - Sufficient, specific timelines, not less than six (6) weeks, as to allow for the improvement of identified deficiencies.
 - v. The provision for a trained teacher mentor/coach as appropriate. The mentor/coach will be provided release time to allow for meetings/observations with the teacher under a remediation plan.
- If an improvement plan is developed after March 1, the plan shall be continued into the next school year.

e. <u>High Quality Student Data (HQSD)</u>

HQSD will be based on current Ohio Revised Code and will be a combination of Value Added, vendor assessment and/or other HQSD approved by the HQSD Approval Committee.

HQSD Approval Committee

The Approval Committee shall consist of a minimum of three teachers per building, and one administrator from each building. The WTEA President shall be responsible for the appointment of the members of the HQSD Approval Committee.

HQSD goals must be submitted on the Template and turned into the Approval Committee by the 2nd Monday after Labor Day. After submission, the Approval Committee will review the submitted goals by using the Template checklist and shall mark them as Approved or Not Approved on the Approval. Final approval must be obtained no later than 30 calendar days after submission of the HQSD.

All committee members will be released from their duties and substitutes will be provided during the time the committee needs during the approval process.

f. Summative Rating of Teacher Effectiveness

Written Summative Rating of Teacher Effectiveness shall be submitted to the Superintendent on or before May 1 of the current school year or as early as the rating is available in years when unit member is subject to renewal. The Summative Rating of Teacher Effectiveness shall be based on the Teacher Performance Rubric. Evaluations will result in a rating designation of Ineffective, Developing, Skilled, or Accomplished. The Final Summative (Overall) Rating will be the designation that will be reported to the Ohio Department of Education (ODE).

Teachers receiving a rating of accomplished may be evaluated every three years and observed once per year providing the teacher submits a self-directed professional growth plan.

Teachers receiving a rating of skilled may be evaluated every two years and observed once per year providing the teacher submits a jointly developed professional growth plan.

In any year in which a teacher who has not been formally evaluated as a result of having previously received a rating of accomplished or skilled, a credentialed evaluator shall conduct at least one observation of the teacher and hold at least one conference with the teacher.

Teachers receiving a rating of developing will be fully evaluated each year and will be guided in the development of a professional growth plan by the evaluator.

Teachers receiving a rating of ineffective will be fully evaluated each year and placed on an improvement plan created by the evaluator.

TEACHERS ON LEAVE OR RETIRING

A teacher-who: (1) was on leave for 50 percent or more of the school year; or (2) has submitted notice of retirement on or before December 1 of the school year shall not have an evaluation. The notice of retirement must be received and accepted by the Board by December 1 of the school year in which they are retiring.

The summary of the written formal evaluation shall be reviewed in cooperative conference between the teacher and the evaluating administrator and shall bear the signature of both. The signatures indicate that the teacher and evaluator have discussed the Summative Rating. The teacher shall receive a copy of the evaluation on or before May 10.

Deficiency(ies) in Job Performance

The Board may non-renew an employee for continuing deficiency(ies) in job performance only if said deficiency(ies) have been identified through the Improvement Plan process and the procedure detailed below has been followed:

- a. When the Summative Rating of Teacher Effectiveness of an employee is unsatisfactory, building administrator shall give the employee at least five (5) days written notice of a conference to discuss the employee's alleged deficiency(ies). The employee may have an Association representative present at said conference. During the conference the principal or designated observer/evaluator shall provide the employee with a written statement of the specific deficiency(ies) on an Improvement Plan and attempt to develop mutually with the employee a program to correct such deficiency(ies). Said program shall be directly related to correcting the employee's specific deficiency(ies).
- b. If the deficiency(ies) is not improved upon the employee shall, within twenty (20) work days following the conference provided in "a." above, receive a written warning notice setting forth the specific deficiency (ies) not corrected.
- c. At the end of the 20 work days specified in "b." above, employee will be provided a conference with the Superintendent, unless the employee waives the right in writing. At such conference the employee may be represented by the Association and shall be afforded the opportunity to present

testimony and evidence and to make statements in the employee's own behalf. The employee shall be notified of the Superintendent's decision.

- Evaluations for School Counselors, Librarians/Media Specialists, and School Nurses
 - Librarians/Media Specialists, and School Nurses be evaluated on a yearly basis.
 - b. School Counselors, Librarians/Media Specialists, and School Nurses will set yearly goals either on a Professional Growth Plan or an Improvement Plan based on the previous year's evaluation. For Librarians/Media Specialists, if the Final Profile Average is a 3 or 4, a Professional Growth Plan will be written. If the Final Profile Average is a 0-1-2, an Improvement Plan will be written.
 - School Counselors will be evaluated using the Ohio School Counselor Evaluation System (OCES).

I. ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFER

General Assignment

- a. No discrimination shall be made in the employment or assignment of teachers because of race, color, religion, national origin, ancestry, sex, sexual orientation, or marital status.
- b. It shall be the responsibility of the Superintendent, or designee, to determine the personnel needs of the school district and to locate suitable candidates to recommend for employment.
 - Assignments shall be made at the discretion of the administration and within the area of teacher competence, teacher certification/licensure, or fields of study, except temporarily in emergency situations.
- All certified personnel shall be appointed by the Board only upon recommendation of the Superintendent. (Source: ORC §3319.07)
- d. Bargaining unit members will maintain in effect valid and current teaching certificates/licensure for all teaching fields in which such members are currently assigned. Bargaining unit members will file all teaching certificates/license (subject and area) with the Treasurer of the school district.
- e. Professionally certified employees of the Board shall be required to have a record of all college work on file in the District Office. (Source: ORC §3319.36)

- The college record of official transcripts shall be submitted to the District Office at the time of employment. These transcripts shall become the property of the Board.
- Grade slips shall be submitted for completed courses when requirements for a degree are in progress. When the degree in progress has been completed, a complete official transcript shall be submitted.
- Duplicate grade slips or transcripts shall be returned to the staff member.

2. Transfer

- a. An opportunity to make a declaration of intention or to request a change of assignment to a specific building, grade, or subject for the following year shall be provided each teacher in February.
- Each teacher requesting a transfer shall have the opportunity to meet with the Superintendent to discuss reasons for request to transfer and available openings.
- c. Although the Board and the Association recognize that frequent transfers of teachers from one school to another may be disruptive of the educational process, they also recognize that reassignment of staff personnel may become necessary.
- d. Transfers may be made when, in the judgment of the Superintendent of Schools, such transfers are necessary to ensure a fair distribution of experienced and qualified personnel to meet load conditions resulting from enrollment changes, to meet instructional and co-curricular requirements, to maintain a balance of experienced teachers on a particular staff, to maintain a building balance of teacher certification/licensure (temporary, permanent, subject area, etc.), and to honor the requests of employees for service elsewhere in the system.
- e. In all instances of transfer, a personal interview between the teacher and the principal of the building to which the teacher is transferring shall be scheduled.
- f. When it is necessary to transfer a teacher, the Superintendent shall so indicate to the teacher in writing at the earliest possible time. A personal interview for further discussion of the transfer shall be scheduled upon request of the teacher.
- g. Except when it is impossible or impracticable, teachers involved in transfers shall be consulted, and consideration shall be given to the morale of the entire staff when plans for transfer are made.

Volunteers who qualify shall be considered first in reassignments.

Written notices of involuntary transfer for the next school year shall be given to the teacher concerned as soon as practicable and under normal circumstances not later than May 10. Explanation shall be provided when a staff member is transferred or when teacher initiated requests for transfer are not granted. No bargaining unit member shall be transferred for arbitrary or capricious reasons.

- h. Teachers who request transfers and do not receive transfers shall be given priority consideration in the next school year if transfer is still desired and requested.
- In order to facilitate transfers, as well as general recruitment, the Association agrees to encourage teachers to communicate to their principal and Superintendent their plans for the following year.

3. Job Opportunities/Postings

A vacancy in the bargaining unit shall be defined as an opening in the certificated /licensed bargaining unit created by the death, resignation, retirement or termination of a bargaining unit member that the Board determines to fill or the creation of a new position.

a. When teaching vacancies, supplemental contracts, or job opportunities occur, bargaining unit members who meet qualifications and who are already employed by the Board shall receive first consideration. Job opportunities are defined as positions paying a salary and/or positions on the administrative or supervisory level.

When vacancies occur after the beginning of the school year, the Superintendent may fill such a vacancy on a temporary or tentative basis until the end of the normal school year, at which time the position may be considered open for transfer requests. Any person hired for the vacancy will have no further expectations of employment beyond the current school year, and this will be clearly stated on his/her limited contract. If the Board determines to fill the position, then that vacancy shall be posted for the next school year. Should a vacancy result due to the transfer of a unit member after the beginning of the school year, said vacancy is subject to posting for the next school year.

b. Information about teaching vacancies, supplemental contracts, or job opportunities within the school system will be emailed to all employees. Postings will be for at least five (5) work days. Postings in the summer shall be for seven (7) calendar days. Vacancies shall be posted by sending an email to each bargaining unit member who has an email address on file with the Board office and by posting a notice of the vacancy(ies) on the Board website. Electronic notification to staff, instead of paper postings, will be

used all year, including summers and breaks. Additionally, notice of vacancy(ies) shall be provided to the Association President who shall be responsible for starting the Association telephone tree to notify members of the vacancy(ies). Any member interested in the vacancy(ies) must contact the Superintendent's office within forty-eight (48) hours of the later of: 1) notification to the Association President or 2) the email notice/website posting to be considered as a candidate, unless interest has been previously submitted in writing to the Superintendent.

- c. The Board shall email vacancy notices to the Association President at the same time they are posted electronically.
- d. Teachers who desire to apply for such vacancies shall file their applications and qualifications in writing with the Superintendent and/or building principals within the time limit specified in the posted notice. Email replies are acceptable.
- e. In filling such positions the Board agrees to give consideration to such factors as the professional background of the applicants, their length of service and work performance in the school district, and experience elsewhere. It is expected that such consideration is done objectively.
- f. The filling of vacancies at the supervisory and administrative levels and the filling of newly created supervisory and administrative positions according to job description posting is the responsibility of the Board, and the decision of the Board with respect to such matters shall be final.

4. Miscellaneous

Teachers shall be provided with a written copy of their tentative teaching assignments on or before the close of the school year with the express understanding that such assignments may be revised. However, no bargaining unit member shall be reassigned after August 1, without good cause and only under extreme circumstances. Teachers shall be advised as soon as possible when changes in tentative assignments become necessary.

Gifted Professional Development

The District will provide professional development time to achieve annual gifted hours.

J. ACADEMIC FREEDOM

Teachers will be entitled to full rights of citizenship, and no religious or political
activities of any teacher, or the lack thereof, will be grounds for any discipline or
discrimination with respect to the employment of such teacher providing said
activities are not a violation of the law or a violation of the Licensure Code of
Conduct for Ohio Educators.

- 2. Academic freedom may be defined as the right of qualified scholars in their own field of expertise to pursue the search for truth in its many forms, and to make public their methods and findings. Opinion(s) should be stated as such and theory for what it is. It is the right of teachers to encourage freedom of discussion of controversial questions in the classroom, and to develop in students a love of knowledge and a desire to search for truth. The teachers should keep in mind that academic freedom is not a guaranteed political right, but rather a necessary condition for the successful practice of the academic profession in a free society. However, the application of the principle of academic freedom at the elementary/secondary school level involves considerations that are not always equally present in a college or university setting. The teachers should take into account the relative immaturity of their students, and the need for guidance and help in studying the issues and arriving at balanced views.
- The teacher should also recognize that academic freedom presupposes the teacher
 to be an expert in the problem area being considered, and that the teacher to be truly
 expert in everything he/she teaches.
- 4. The Board shall assure teachers the right to pursue truth in fulfilling their classroom duties; it also expects that controversial issues will be presented in a fair and unbiased manner, and that the maturity and intellectual grasp of students will be taken into account and presentation will encompass the Board adopted goals and curriculum.

K. PROHIBITION AGAINST PUBLIC CRITICISM

Any criticism of a bargaining unit member by a supervisor, administrator or member of the Board and/or any criticism of a supervisor, administrator or Board member by a member of the bargaining unit shall be made in confidence and never in the presence of pupils, other employees, members of the community, on social media, or at public gatherings. All critiques shall be made confidentially.

L. REQUIRED MEETINGS OR HEARINGS

Whenever any employee is required to meet with any employer representative concerning any matter which could adversely affect the employee's status, the employee shall be given reasonable, prior written notice of the time and nature of the meeting and may be entitled to have present an Association representative.

M. INCLUSION

Bargaining unit members assigned special needs students will be provided support and training should the need arise.

The administration will make every reasonable attempt to reach mutual agreement with the bargaining unit member as to the appropriate needs and responses.

If any special medical needs student is placed in the classroom, the teaching staff will not be required to perform medical procedures, unless it is an emergency, or to handle problems with bladder and bowel control, or bodily fluids, unless it is an emergency. This procedure applies only to special medical needs students.

However, the parties further agree that it is in the best interest of the special needs student, bargaining unit members and the school district for bargaining unit members to attend all or part of such meetings that are relevant to their particular special need student(s) that they are available to attend.

N. CLASS SIZE

The Board and the Association are committed to maintaining a reasonable class size. The Board will make every reasonable effort to maintain the following guidelines:

K	Max. 25
1-3	Max. 28
4-6	Max. 30
7-12	Max. 30

Certain activity classes such as Instrumental and Vocal Music, Physical Education, and study halls will be exempt from these guidelines.

The resource teacher will spend time in classroom in proportion to the needs of disabled students in any particular class.

If the average daily teacher's class size exceeds the maximum above, the bargaining unit member will receive one hundred dollars (\$100) per student/per semester above the maximum. Teachers shall maintain all necessary records relating to class size and present them to their principal(s) within one (1) week after the end of the first semester and on teacher checkout day at the end of the school year.

In no event will this class size provision require the construction of additional facilities.

No class shall be initially scheduled to exceed thirty-five (35) students. In the event a class does exceed thirty-five (35) students, the instructor, Association representative(s) and the administration shall meet and discuss options to remedy the situation.

O. LOCAL PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE/ENTRY YEAR PROGRAM

1. Purpose

A Local Professional Development Committee (LPDC) shall be established to oversee and review professional development plans for course work, continuing education units, and/or other equivalent activities.

2. Term Of Office

The term of office for members serving on the LPDC shall be two (2) years with each term commencing on July 1. The LPDC shall determine a means of accomplishing a staggering of terms for LPDC members so as to provide continuity to the committee.

3. Committee Composition and Selection

- The LPDC shall be comprised of five (5) members as follows: Three (3) unit members, and two (2) administrators.
- b. The three (3) unit members shall be appointed by the Association.
- In the event of a vacancy, the committee member shall be replaced in accordance with (b) above.

4. Chairperson

The committee chairperson shall alternate annually between the Association and District representatives.

5. Decision Making

A quorum shall be defined as a majority of the entire committee with representatives from both the Association and the District present.

6. Training

- a. All members of the LPDC shall be afforded the opportunity to attend training for the purpose, responsibilities, functioning, and legal requirements of LPDC's as well as the professional skills necessary to carry out the duties of the LPDC. Any such training arranged by the District shall be equitably available to all members of the LPDC.
- b. LPDC members shall be reimbursed for all actual and necessary expenses incurred as part of the training. Such training shall be pursuant to the reimbursement provisions of Article V (E).

7. Meetings

The LPDC shall meet as often as the members deem necessary to complete their work. Not later than September 10 each year, the committee shall post in each building their meeting schedule. Additional meetings may be scheduled as necessary.

8. Compensation

Each member of the LPDC Committee shall receive a six hundred dollar (\$600) stipend for the fiscal year in which they serve. The stipend will be paid in the last pay of June annually.

- 9. No entry year program shall be implemented unless the Association is a full partner in its planning and implementation. The Association shall appoint the required number of bargaining unit members that will serve on any entry year or related planning/oversight committee.
- The Fairfield County LPDC Appeals Committee (FCAC) may hear appeals of teachers/administrators from participating school districts LPDC with no independent appeals process, or review upon request, the decision of a local LPDC.

The FCAC will be comprised of one (1) teacher member and one (1) administrative member from each participating school district, excluding the school district from which the appeal originates. When the appeal is from an administrator, the FCAC will, at the request of one of its administrative members, cause a majority of the committee to consist of administrative members by reducing the number of teacher members voting on the appeal.

ARTICLE VIII

COMPENSATION

A. SALARY

- Effective July 1, 2022, the base salary BA degree, 0 experience, shall increase 2%; effective July 1, 2023, the base salary BA degree, 0 experience, shall increase 3%; effective July 1, 2024, the base salary BA degree, 0 experience, shall increase 3%.
 - A one-time stipend of \$600.00 will be paid out to each bargaining unit member on the November 20, 2022 pay to address learning loss related to COVID-19.
- All salary increases for bargaining unit members shall be effective with the beginning of the school year except as provided in Section I. of this Article.
- The supplemental salary base for regular teachers' contracts shall be the regular base salary.
- See Appendix for salary schedules. Effective July 1, 2022, step increments at 30 shall be added to the salary schedule in the Appendix. In addition, current step 28 will become step 26.

B. PAYROLL PRACTICES

- The employment year shall be divided into twenty-four (24) equal pay periods. Pay days shall fall on the 5th and 20th of each month. If a scheduled pay falls on a weekend or holiday, pay will be distributed the weekday immediately prior to the weekend or holiday.
 - 2. All wage payments shall be by direct deposit.
 - 3. All pay stubs shall be e-mailed, via school e-mail address, to each bargaining unit member on payday. Any unit member who does not have access to an e-mail account at home may request a paper copy to be mailed to their home address prior to leaving school for the summer.
 - All payroll deductions to credit unions shall be sent to the appropriate agency or company within one (1) working day of each and every payday.
 - 5. Compensation for supplemental contracts will be paid with regular payroll as a separate line item on or before the following dates:

Fall activities: October 15th and at the conclusion of the last fall sport

Winter activities: January 15th and at the conclusion of the last winter sport

Spring activities: At the conclusion of the last spring sport provided that, the employee has completed all of the contracted duties and upon notification to the Treasurer's office by the supervising administrator, that the supplemental position tasks are completed. In addition, for those on year-long supplementals, payment will be made on or before January 15th and the Spring activities pay date. Note: Year-long supplementals will be identified by an asterisk (*).

For supplemental positions that are split between two (2) bargaining unit members, the Board will issue payment to each member equaling one-half (1/2) of the supplemental pay.

6. With the exception of year-long supplemental contracts, compensation for supplemental contracts shall be paid at the conclusion of the athletic or academic season. Approval for payment will come from the supervising administrator. All supplemental pays will be included as part of a regular payroll.

7 Credit for Experience

- a. Credit will be awarded as follows to bargaining unit members initially employed after the effective date of this contract: One (1) year's credit = one hundred twenty (120) days of service in a school year.
- Full credit will be given for up to five (5) years prior military service as defined in Section §3317.13 of the Revised Code.

- c. Full credit will be given for up to eight (8) prior years teaching experience in an accredited public or private school.
- d. At the Superintendent's discretion, credit on the supplemental salary schedule may be given for up to eight (8) years prior experience in the area of the supplemental or comparable area.

8. Hourly Rate

- a. <u>Tutors</u> Upon advance approval by the Board, employee granted a supplemental contract for tutoring shall be paid at the established district rate of hourly paid instruction as indicated on the Supplementary Salary Schedule for hours during which service was actually provided to students.
- b. <u>Class Coverage</u> when a principal finds that it is impossible or impracticable to secure a substitute for a bargaining unit member, then the teacher who covers an absent teacher's class shall be paid one-sixth (1/6) of the substitute daily rate per period at the high school or per hour at the elementary school provided the teacher providing the class coverage had to use his/her planning time to cover the class. If a teacher requests reimbursement for more than loss of planning time, then approval of the building principal and superintendent will be required.
- c. Zero period teachers that must work beyond their normal workday shall be paid for each hour or fraction of an hour at the substitute daily rate (divided by 7 hrs and 25 minutes to determine hourly rate). Said teachers may be assigned duties during this period.
- Board Approved Extended Time paid at the individual bargaining unit member's per diem rate of pay spread over twenty-four (24) pays per year.
- Column Placement on Salary Schedule One hundred fifty (150) semester hours - graduate or undergraduate semester hours regardless of when earned.
- Enrollment in tax sheltered annuities is available to all bargaining unit members.
 In order for a new tax sheltered annuity to be approved for payroll deduction, a minimum of five (5) bargaining unit members must participate in open enrollment.

C. SUPPLEMENTAL SALARIES

- No unit member shall have their regular teaching contract non-renewed because of a failure to accept a supplemental duty contract.
- 2. In the event a unit member is hired by the Board for a supplemental position and student participation or interest are not sufficient to sustain the activity, the unit member shall be given first consideration for another vacant supplemental position or be given first consideration when a vacancy becomes known.

Supplemental Pay Schedule attached in Appendix.

D. STRS PICK-UP: SALARY REDUCTION METHOD

- The Board agrees to STRS "pick-up" utilizing the salary reduction method. Contributions to the State Teacher Retirement System will be paid on behalf of the employees in the bargaining unit, at no cost to the Board, under the following terms and conditions.
 - a. The amount to be "picked-up" on behalf of each employee shall be an amount equal to the Employee Contribution to STRS, as established by STRS, (of the employee's gross annual compensation). The employee's annual compensation shall be reduced, at no cost to the Board, by an amount equal to the amount "picked-up" by the Board for the purpose of State and Federal tax only.
 - b. The pick-up percentage shall apply uniformly to all members of the bargaining unit as a condition of employment.
 - c. No employee covered by this provision shall have the option to elect a wage increase or other benefit in lieu of the employer pick-up.
 - d. Payment of all paid leaves, sick leave, personal leave, and severance, including unemployment and worker's compensation, shall be based on the employee's daily gross pay prior to reduction as basis (ex: gross pay divided by the number of days worked.)
- 2. Each employee will be responsible for compliance with Internal Revenue Service salary exclusion allowance regulations, with respect to the "pick-up" in combination with other tax deferred compensation plans. Each employee will indemnify and hold the Board harmless from any loss, costs, damages, or penalties which may result from efforts by the employee to shelter income from taxation in excess of the maximum permitted by law.
- 3. If the foregoing "pick-up" provisions are nullified by subsequent Internal Revenue Service Rulings, Ohio Attorney General Opinions, or other governing regulations, the Board will be held harmless and this Article of Agreement shall be declared null and void. The Board shall then return to the former method of employer and employee retirement system contributions as soon as is necessary.

E. RETIREMENT INCENTIVE

Each bargaining unit member, upon retirement under the rules of the State Teachers Retirement System (STRS) shall receive an additional forty (40) days of severance pay.

To be eligible for this retirement incentive, the teacher must: (1) be eligible for service retirement under the rules of the State Teachers Retirement System with thirty (30) years of service, or (2) be eligible for retirement under the rules of the State Teachers Retirement

System with fewer than thirty (30) years of service. Teachers may only receive the retirement incentive with fewer than thirty (30) years of service upon application of the teacher and approval of the Superintendent. Teachers must notify the District in writing of such retirement by March 31st of the year in which he/she intends to retire from the Walnut Township Local Schools and complete the school year. Except as otherwise provided herein, the retirement incentive will not be available to teachers who do not retire in the year in which they first attain thirty (30) years of credited STRS service.

F. SEVERANCE PAY

All employees covered by Section §3319.141 of the Revised Code, State of Ohio, who present evidence of service retirement from the State Teachers Retirement System (STRS) or School Employees Retirement System (SERS), at the time of retirement from active service with the Walnut Township Local School District shall be granted severance pay for their accrued but unused sick leave days according to the following provisions:

- To be eligible for severance pay, the employee must apply in writing to the Walnut Township Local Board of Education no later than ninety (90) days after the last paid date of service with the school district.
- The application must be accompanied by an appropriate document from the retirement system stating that the applicant has been approved to begin receiving a service retirement benefit and listing the number of years of retirement credit allowed by the system.
- Contributions to the employee's retirement system for severance pay will not be made by either the Board of Education or the employee.
- Severance pay shall be paid only once to any employee.
- 5. Payment shall be made only upon service retirement.
- 6. The pay shall be subjected to all legal deductions.
- The payment of severance pay shall eliminate all unused sick leave of the employee in this district.
- 8. To be eligible to collect severance pay, an employee must have a minimum of ten (10) years' service in any State related retirement system. A year of service shall be at least one hundred twenty (120) days of employment from July 1 to the following June 30 of any year.
 - 9. Employees will be paid severance pay based on their daily rate of pay at the time of retirement times one-fourth (¼) of their accumulated days of unused sick leave at retirement not to exceed fifty-five (55) days of pay.
 - 10. Severance pay shall be paid, within sixty (60) calendar days after submitting proof of retirement to the Walnut Township Local Board of Education. However, if the

retiring employee dies prior to receipt of severance pay, such severance pay shall be made to the deceased retirant's heirs, successors, or assigns as provided by law, will, or the courts.

Retiring teachers may elect to use severance pay for the purchase/change of Boardapproved tax-sheltered annuities consistent with Internal Revenue Service regulations. Any such request must be submitted to the Treasurer, in writing, not less than thirty (30) days in advance of the desired date of purchase.

G. DISABILITY RETIREMENT

All bargaining unit members who are disabled shall apply for and begin disability retirement status with the State Teachers Retirement System at the earliest possible time. Sick leave may not be used as an alternative to disability retirement benefits.

Unit members who are approved for STRS disability retirement shall choose one of the following two options for their remaining sick leave, if any:

- 1. Take severance pay pursuant to Article VIII, G.
- 2. Be paid the difference between the daily rate the retiree receives under STRS disability and the unit member's daily rate at the time of retirement from the District. Such payment shall be made for the number of days the retiree had remaining on the books at the time of retirement, and shall be made in a lump sum payment within thirty (30) days of the submission of proof of retirement. Such payment shall eliminate all of the unit member's remaining sick leave.

H. COVERING CLASSES OTHER THAN ASSIGNED

Only when a qualified substitute teacher is not available or an emergency arises during the school day will teachers be assigned by the principal to cover classes of an absent teacher.

When a professional staff member is asked to substitute for an absent teacher and as a result, loses his or her planning period, a record shall be kept of this waiver of planning period. The principal shall assign teachers to cover classes of absent teachers on an equitable rotating basis unless mutually agreed otherwise; however, the principal's judgment shall be final in deciding whether such assignments are in the best educational interest of the students in such classes.

Compensation for teachers so assigned to waive their planning period and take the place of absent teachers shall be at one-sixth (1/6) of the daily substitute rate. When pupils of an absent elementary school teacher are divided among more than one (1) elementary teacher, the teachers receiving such pupils shall equally share in the substitute teacher's daily rate for the time involved.

The principal shall submit a record of such assignments two (2) times (end of each semester) during the school year to the Treasurer's office for payment.

I. SALARY ADJUSTMENT

A bargaining unit member receiving additional training credits will be permitted to make a lateral move on the teaching salary schedule effective with the 45th calendar day after submission of his/her official transcript and request for column movement form to the Treasurer's office.

J. TUITION REIMBURSEMENT

The bargaining unit must be employed in the Walnut Township Local Schools the year following receiving this credit to be eligible to be reimbursed under this provision, unless RIFed or non-renewed. If a bargaining unit member leaves the employ of the district before completing the agreed to year of service, that year's previously paid tuition reimbursement shall be deducted from the bargaining unit member's last paycheck.

- 1. The Board will provide \$25,000 for the purpose of reimbursing teachers for courses completed in their teaching area, area of licensure or is otherwise related to their teaching position. The Treasurer shall add the total amount for reimbursement for the previous 12 months as of September 15th of each year. This amount shall be divided into the total allocated as stated above to determine the percent each teacher shall receive for the course work completed. Payment to the teacher shall be made by November 1st. Payment will not exceed 100% of the tuition cost. Each member must submit a completed grade slip and an itemized paid fee receipt for reimbursement. Any amount of the total allocation for reimbursement not used 1 (one) year, shall be rolled over to the following year provided the total amount does not exceed the annual limits set forth above.
- The staff member must be employed in the district at the time such reimbursement is due, otherwise payment shall be forfeited.
- 3. Reimbursement will occur for only those courses where prior approval has been granted by the Superintendent; that approval must precede the registration for and the beginning date of the course(s). Only those courses which directly relate to the respective reaching field or those courses needed for additional certification requirements qualify under this program.

Reimbursement Guidelines:

- a. Complete the form to reflect your plan for the completion of the course(s) and submit it to the Superintendent for approval prior to registering for course work.
- b. After the Superintendent has approved your coursework request, the original form will be returned to you with the appropriate approval.
- As you are completing the coursework, make sure you keep the RECEIPT indicating the amount you paid for the TUITION COST of the class.

- (Reimbursement is NOT available for material fees, bus transportation charges, general registration fees, etc.)
- d. When you have completed your class and have received your final grade of C or better, attach the grade slip to the form along with the paid fee receipt and turn into the Treasurer's office.
- All required documentation must be submitted to the Treasurer's office within one year of course completion in order to receive reimbursement.

K. MEMBERSHIP DUES DEDUCTION

- 1. Membership dues of the Association and its District, State and National affiliates, shall be deducted in twenty (20) equal installments beginning with the first pay check of each school year on the basis of voluntary deduction authorizations signed by the employee and supplied by the Association to the Treasurer. Such deduction shall be for a period of one (1) year except that authorizations may be withdrawn provided that notification of withdrawal is submitted to the Treasurer during such fifteen (15) day period. Those bargaining unit employees who voluntarily become members of the union after September 30 shall be added to payroll deduction.
- 2. The enrollment period for such deduction shall be from September 1 to September 30 each year. Authorization shall be on a continuing basis from year to year unless a request for withdrawal is submitted in writing to the Treasurer of the Board, with a copy to the Association.
- The balance of the annual deductions shall be deducted from the final pay check of a member resigning his/her position, receiving a leave of absence, or terminating his/her employment after January 1 of any year.
- The Association shall have exclusive payroll deduction rights for union dues for members of the bargaining unit.
- Contributions to OEA/FCPE, if authorized by the unit member (\$1.00 minimum
 per installment), will be deducted at the discretion of the unit member. Such
 contributions shall be made concurrently with OEA membership dues deductions
 and shall continue year to year.

L. INSURANCE BENEFITS

The Board reserves the right to choose the carrier providing the benefits for medical, dental, and vision that meet or exceed the levels and conditions of the coverage offered under the Master Agreement.

Medical

The Board shall have the right to open negotiations for salary and insurance in the event that the total cost of the medical insurance plan provided in this Agreement shall increase

by more than twenty percent (20%) annually. Any such negotiations shall be conducted in accordance with Article III, Section J. of this Agreement.

The parties agree that they will form an Insurance Committee with equal numbers of administrators and bargaining unit members to monitor insurance costs and make recommendations regarding cost containment measures.

Any mandates, such as Best Practices, from the School Employees Health Care Board shall become a part of this agreement.

The following will be provided for bargaining unit members effective July 1, 2019:

- The Board will pay 80% of premium of the Mid Plan ("Mid Plan"). Each bargaining unit member who is eligible for health insurance may elect;
 - a. the Mid Plan (paying 20% of the premium of the Mid Plan);
 - the "Current Plan" by paying 20% of the Mid Plan premium plus the full additional premium cost of the Current Plan each month over the cost of the Mid Plan; or
 - c. the H.S.A. Plan by paying the remainder of the premium after the Board pays 80% of the cost of the Mid Plan.
- For each bargaining unit member who elects and is enrolled in the H.S.A. Plan, the Board will contribute to the member's personal H.S.A. account as follows:

Year 1 on HSA:

Family: \$5,000.00Single: \$2,500.00

Year 2 on HSA:

Family: \$2,500.00Single: \$1,250.00

Year 3 on HSA:

Family: \$2,500.00Single: \$1,250.00

Year 4 and subsequent years on HSA:

- Family: \$1,000.00 + Possible Additional \$500.00 stipend for physical*
- Single: \$500.00 + Possible Additional \$500.00 stipend for physical*

^{*}An additional \$500 will be paid to the employee's HSA account following written verification from a primary care provider that: the employee has completed a routine physical for a single plan OR the employee and spouse

have both completed a routine physical for a family plan. The \$500 stipend cannot be partially paid and both physicals must be completed for any employee enrolled in a family plan in order to be eligible to receive the additional \$500.

In order to receive the \$500 stipend, the written verification by the primary care provider must be completed by December 31 of the year prior to the year in which the \$500 stipend is to be paid.

- Contributions to member's H.S.A. accounts beyond 2025, will be a subject that will be addressed in bargaining.
- 4. H.S.A. account contributions by the Board will be paid in two installments. First installment will be the 1st pay in January and the 2nd installment will be the 1st pay in August. New employees will get one (1) installment on the 1st pay of their contract.
- 5. For each calendar year through 2025, if a member is enrolled in the H.S.A. plan and if the member has a health situation in which the member uses the full out-of-pocket amount for one covered person, the member may notify the Treasurer's office of this fact. The Treasurer shall then request certification of the notice by the Health Insurance Consortium. Once the full out-of-pocket amount for one covered person is certified, the Board will advance the remainder of the board's contribution to the member's H.S.A. account for that year.
 - A member may move back to the Mid-Plan once after moving to the H.S.A. plan during an open enrollment period, but such a member will forfeit further Board contributions to his/her H.S.A. account.
 - New hires will not be offered the current plan or the Mid Plan but only the H.S.A. Plan effective July 1, 2020.
 - The deductible amount for the H.S.A. Plan shall increase if necessary to meet IRS rules.

9. Life Insurance

The Board pays the full amount of the premium for thirty thousand dollars (\$30,000) of group term insurance for each unit member.

10. Dental Insurance

Single - 100% Premium; Family - 80% Premium

11. The parties agree that the Board has the right to change carriers for hospitalization and major medical insurance, life, and dental insurance, provided:

- Benefits and services equal or exceed current benefit levels.
- b. The Board provides a copy of any proposed insurance plan to the Association for its review and discussion with Board representatives at least sixty (60) days prior to proposed implementation date of the new carrier.
- 12. The Board will provide a premium only IRS 125 Plan for all regular unit members.

M. TRAVEL EXPENSES

Bargaining unit members will be paid travel expenses for approved travel in connection with school business. The Superintendent may authorize and approve trips for which travel expenses are paid for school employees.

Travel expenses will be paid at the current rate of the Internal Revenue Service (IRS). Requests for approval of travel expenses are to be made on the Professional Leave Form. Bargaining unit members are to submit such approved forms at the end of each month to the Superintendent. If the amount is less than ten dollars (\$10.00), the Treasurer's office may accumulate these forms until a ten dollar (\$10.00) total is obtained before issuing payment.

N. EMPLOYMENT OF RETIRED TEACHERS

A teacher retired under STRS ("re-employed teacher") may be employed under the following conditions:

- Subject to these provisions, re-employed teachers are part of the bargaining unit and subject to the provisions of the Agreement.
- The re-employed teacher will start with salary schedule placement at step zero BA
 Index of the Salary Schedule. The re-employed teacher will be advanced one (1)
 year on the salary schedule for each year of re-employment service to the District.
- The re-employed teacher will be eligible for Board-paid health/medical insurance only if employed full time.
- 4. The re-employed teacher will be employed under a one-year limited contract, which will be automatically non-renewed at the conclusion of that year without the need for completion of evaluation procedures or completion of non-renewal procedures. [The administration may conduct formal or informal observations and/or written evaluations, as it deems appropriate.] The Board and W.T.E.A. intend that this provision expressly supersedes any rights the re-employed teacher may otherwise have under O.R.C. Sections 3319.11 and 3319.111.
- Re-employed teachers are not eligible to participate in any mentoring or retirement incentive program; nor are they eligible for severance pay under Articles VIII, Sections E and F.

- 6. Re-employed teachers will commence their employment with up to five (5) days accumulated sick leave. If said days are carried forward from other prior public employers or the Walnut Township School District, the district may advance a re-employed teacher up to five (5) days sick leave, but he/she may not participate in the sick leave bank under Article V, Section B.5.
- In the event of a Reduction in Force, the re-employed teacher will not have any bumping rights under Section 19 of this Agreement, and will be the first to be layed off.
 - Such re-employment will not jeopardize the continuation of existing academic programs nor result in the Reduction in Force of faculty employed at the commencement of each such re-employment contract.
 - The Association President shall be advised of any re-employment situation.
 - 10. To the extent this provision of the agreement conflicts with other provisions of the agreement, it will not be grievable under the grievance procedure of the agreement, nor through any claim or action filed before the State Employment Relations Board (SERB), or any court of law. However, the misapplication or interpretation of this provision of the agreement may be subject to the grievance procedure.
- If an employee receives or takes advantage of any district provided retirement incentive, they will be employed at and remain at step zero for the duration of their employment.
- There is no right to re-employment upon retirement.

The provisions of this Article shall supersede ORC 3317.14, and any and all provisions of conflicting Ohio law.

O. SUPPLEMENTAL PAY SCHEDULE

INDEX

Experience Steps

A 0-1 Years	B 2-4 Years	C 5-7 Years	D 8+ Years	
0.120	0.145	0.170	0.195	
0.084	0.096	0.108	0.120	
0.072	0.084	0.096	0.108	
0.060	0.072	0.084	0.096	
0.048	0.054	0.060	0.066	
0.024	0.030	0.036	0.042	
0.018	0.024	0.030	0.036	
	0.120 0.084 0.072 0.060 0.048 0.024	0-1 Years 2-4 Years 0.120 0.145 0.084 0.096 0.072 0.084 0.060 0.072 0.048 0.054 0.024 0.030	0-1 Years 2-4 Years 5-7 Years 0.120 0.145 0.170 0.084 0.096 0.108 0.072 0.084 0.096 0.060 0.072 0.084 0.048 0.054 0.060 0.024 0.030 0.036	0-1 Years 2-4 Years 5-7 Years 8+ Years 0.120 0.145 0.170 0.195 0.084 0.096 0.108 0.120 0.072 0.084 0.096 0.108 0.060 0.072 0.084 0.096 0.048 0.054 0.060 0.066 0.024 0.030 0.036 0.042

GROUP RATE POSITIONS (* Indicates Year-Long Supplementals)

I Athletic Director*

Head Football

Head Boys Basketball Head Girls Basketball

Head Track Head Volleyball Band Director*

Dean of Students with Full-Time Principal*

H.S. Music/Select Director*

II Assistant Football

Assistant Boys Basketball Assistant Girls Basketball

Head Baseball Head Softball

III Assistant Volleyball

Freshmen Boys Basketball Freshman Girls Basketball

Assistant Track Varsity Wrestling Varsity Soccer

Senior Class Advisor*

Lead Teacher Elementary*
Junior Class/Prom Advisor*
Football Cheerleading

Basketball Cheerleading

IV Boys Golf

Girls Golf

Cross Country

Jazz Band Director*

Marching Band/Auxiliary Director

Assistant Baseball Assistant Softball Head Jr. High Football Jr. High Basketball

Freshman Volleyball

V Jr. High Track

Assistant Jr. High Football

Jr. High Volleyball Quiz Team Advisor Year Book Advisor*

HS Athletic Game Manager

Destination Imagination Coordinator

VI Sophomore Class Advisor*

Jr. High Cheerleader Advisor

School Play Director

High School Student Council*

Elementary School Student Council

Web Master-District*
Web Master-Jr/Sr High*

Web Master-Elementary*
Elementary Progress Book Coordinator*

Jr. High Athletic Game Manager

Destination Imagination Team Member

VII National Honor Society*

Spanish Club* German Club* Art Club*

American Sign Language Club*

The position of School Play Director will be paid one-half (1/2) at the conclusion of winter activities and one-half (1/2) at the conclusion of spring activities.

The position of Jr. High Cheerleading Advisor will be paid one-half (1/2) at the conclusion of fall activities and one-half (1/2) at the conclusion of winter activities.

Position of Dean of Students with Full-Time Principal remains at Group Rate I, with additional stipend of .06 of the supplemental base.

If one person is the coach of both the boys and girls golf teams, then that person will receive full pay for one position and one-half (1/2) pay for the second position. If either the boys or girls teams have fewer matches then the compensation will be pro-rated based on the number of matches. The boys and girls golf teams must have separate practice times as much as possible.

EXTENDED SERVICE POSITIONS:

Extended service beyond the one-hundred-eighty-four (184) day contract shall be paid at the per diem rate of pay earned by the bargaining unit member for the contract year. Additional extended service days will be at the discretion of the Superintendent up to two (2) days per bargaining unit member.

Athletic Director: Ten (10) days extended service at his/her daily rate.

When the position of Athletic Director is not filled by a bargaining unit member, the position and rate of compensation will not be considered a part of the negotiated agreement between the WTEA and the Board.

Student Activity Director:

A stipend according to Group Rate II (appropriate experience level) plus ten (10) days extended service at his/her daily rate.

The Board and Association agree to remove the supplemental contract position "Student Activity Director" from this Article and Section and from the bargaining unit when the holder of that position becomes qualified to receive an Ohio Supervisory (or higher grade administrative) Certificate. The Student Activity Director position shall then be considered an administrative position and shall fall under Article VII, Section I, Part 3 - Job Opportunities/Postings.

Guidance Counselor:

Up to twenty-five (25) days Extended Service at his/her

daily rate.

Coordinator of Technology:

Elementary: Up to twenty-five (25) days of extended service

time

High School: Up to twenty-five (25) days of extended service time in lieu of four (4) technology supplementals.

P. OPEN ENROLLMENT OF TEACHER'S CHILDREN

The parties agree that children of bargaining unit members who wish to enroll in the Walnut Township Local School District do not have to reside in a contiguous school district to qualify for open enrollment. Additionally, once the children (child) of a bargaining unit member are enrolled in the Walnut Township Local School District, they may complete their education in the district as long as the attendance, discipline and academic achievement are of a satisfactory nature as determined by the building administrator.

Q. SUBSTITUTE TEACHERS

Employed in the same position for more than sixty (60) consecutive days, then the rate of pay after the expiration of the sixtieth (60th) day shall be:

Bachelor's Degree, Experience Step-0; Pro-rated on a Daily Basis

R. HOURLY PAID INSTRUCTION

Home Instruction	\$20.00/hr.
Saturday School/Detention Monitor	\$20.00/hr.
Instructional Tutors	\$20.00/hr.
Summer School - 10 Students in a Class	\$20.00/hr.
Summer School - 11 to 15 Students in a Class	\$22.00/hr.

Note: Preparation time for summer school shall be calculated on the basis of 40 minutes per day of scheduled summer school classes. This time may be used in blocks as needed for group planning.

S. MENTOR TEACHERS – FOR RESIDENT EDUCATORS

Mentor teachers will be paid one time per year at the end of the year based on the year of the Resident Educator that is being mentored as follows:

Years 1 and 2	\$400
Year 3	\$300
Year 4	\$200

The above amount will be prorated if the resident educator leaves the district in the middle of the school year.

T. STIPENDS

- 1. Teacher of Record: Bargaining unit members assigned to serve as a student's "Teacher of Record" for an external on-line course shall receive a stipend of \$125.00 per student/per half credit to serve as the "teacher of record." All such assignments are subject to pre-approval by the building principal and Superintendent. Payment of the stipend will be made at the end of each semester. However, if a student drops the online course within 14 days of enrollment in the class, no stipend will be paid.
- Spelling Bee: Bargaining unit member(s) serving as the facilitator(s) of the Spelling Bee will receive a total of \$150.00. If more than one facilitator, the amount will be split.
- Right to Read Stipend: Bargaining unit member(s) serving as the facilitator(s) of Right to Read will receive a total of \$150.00. If more than one facilitator, the amount will be split.

ARTICLE IX

COMMUNICABLE DISEASES AND PHYSICAL EXAMINATIONS

A. NONDISCRIMINATION

- No unit member shall be subjected to indiscriminate testing by the Board of Education for a chronic communicable/infectious disease. All testing, if performed at all, shall be performed in accordance with the procedures outlined in this Article.
- The Board shall not discharge any unit member nor otherwise discriminate against
 any unit member with respect to wages, hours, terms or other conditions of
 employment on the basis of the fact that such unit member has contracted a chronic
 communicable/infectious disease, as determined by law.

B. REPORTS OF SUSPECTED CARRIERS

- All reports of suspected carriers or of carriers who have either been exposed to or who have contracted a communicable/infectious disease shall be directed to the Superintendent.
- 2. All reports of suspected carriers shall be in writing except from the affected individual and shall identify the person(s) making the report and shall note the reasons why the reported unit member is suspected of being a carrier. In determining whether to act upon such a report, the Superintendent shall also consult with the affected employee, the employee's personal physician, if available, and with a physician selected by the Board. If a report is received which does not meet the specified requirements, it shall not be acted on by the Superintendent.

C. TESTING CRITERIA

No unit member shall be required to submit to a medical evaluation of his physical or mental condition in regard to a chronic communicable infectious disease without determination of probable cause for said evaluation. The probable cause determination shall consist of: 1) a report in writing as defined above, or; 2) the unit member agreeing to voluntarily submit to such an evaluation.

D. MEDICAL EXAMINATION

- Within ten (10) working days after a determination that probable cause exists for medical evaluation or if a unit member voluntarily submits to a medical evaluation, a medical review team comprised of: a) a physician specializing in contagious diseases (if possible); b) a physician from the appropriate public health district; c) the unit member's primary care physician, and; d) the physician designated by the Superintendent as the school physician shall be convened by the Superintendent to conduct a medical evaluation of the unit member's condition. The medical review team shall provide for the examination of the unit member and may obtain, upon written, voluntary authorization of the unit member, unless otherwise provided by law, all relevant and pertinent medical information from the unit member's personal physician.
- 2. The report rendered by the medical review team shall be restricted to an evaluation of the unit member's medical condition and shall clearly provide:
 - a. Whether or not the unit member has been infected with a chronic communicable disease as alleged in the report to the Superintendent. If so, then the medical review team shall determine:
 - Whether or not the unit member's current medical condition imposes a substantial health risk to himself/herself and/or to others in the school environment and the rationale for the finding. In making that determination, the medical review team shall consider:

- the nature of the risk of the unit member's medical condition (how the disease is transmitted);
- the duration of the medical condition (how long is the carrier infectious);
- the severity of the risk of the medical condition (what is the potential harm to third parties);
- the probability the disease will be transmitted and will cause varying degrees or harm;
- e) other factors deemed pertinent by the review team, such as, but not limited to, the current state of medical knowledge and applicable law, the particular class assignment in question, and the degree to which the disease affects the employee's job performance.
- Whether or not the unit member is otherwise qualified to remain in his/her current job, for how long, and whether and under what circumstances the individual case should be reconsidered by the review team. "Otherwise qualified" means that the unit member is able to adequately perform all of the job requirements in spite of the unit member's medical condition.
- 3) All costs of the medical evaluation, above and beyond those which are paid for by the insurance coverage(s) available to the unit member, shall be borne by the Board.

E. REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION

- 1. Within ten (10) working days of receipt of a medical evaluation report indicating that a unit member's current medical condition imposes a substantial health risk to himself/herself and for others in the school environment or prevents the unit member from adequately performing all of the said unit member's job requirements, the Superintendent shall provide written notification to the unit member specifying the action the Board shall take to reasonably accommodate the unit member's disabling condition, if the Board deems such accommodation to be warranted under the circumstances of the particular case.
- 2. Any attempt to reasonably accommodate the unit member's disabling condition shall not violate the existing contractual rights of other unit members. Prior to any attempt to reasonably accommodate the unit member's disabling condition, the Board shall seek input from Association representatives. If the Association believes that the proposed accommodation would violate the contract, the Association may request that the Board meet with appropriate representatives of the Association to negotiate a reasonable accommodation.

Any dispute regarding whether the Board has made a reasonable accommodation
or whether the proposed accommodation is in compliance with the contract shall
be subject to expedited final and binding grievance arbitration, or if discrimination
is alleged, the normal procedures of the law.

F. INVOLUNTARY REMOVAL OF A DISABLED UNIT MEMBER

Prior to implementing a temporary or permanent involuntary removal of a unit member with a chronic communicable disease, the Board shall first determine whether the provisions of Ohio Revised Code §3319.13 are applicable under the circumstances of the particular case.

G. DISABILITY RETIREMENT

Subsequent to the determination that permanent removal of a disabled employee is justified, the Board shall support the unit member's application for disability retirement, to the same extent as it would for any other unit member's disability retirement application, if the unit member elects to make such application.

H. CONFIDENTIALITY

All reports of suspected carriers and all aspects of the medical evaluation shall be treated as "highly confidential" unless the affected employee otherwise consents. Any report received or rendered during these procedures shall be released only to the Superintendent and the unit member unless otherwise permitted by state and/or federal law. Any discussion of a report by the Board shall be conducted in executive session. The sharing of information about a unit member with a chronic communicable disease will be on a "need to know" basis.

I. EDUCATION

The Board recognizes the need for education programs for all unit employees regarding chronic communicable diseases and their transmission, with specific emphasis on AIDS. The purpose of such programs shall be to reduce irrational fears regarding the diseases and their transmission within the school environment. The Board of Education will take all steps necessary and practical to provide such a program. Informational materials may be obtained directly from the Fairfield County Board of Health and the Ohio Department of Health.

J. TIME LIMITS

The time limits above may be extended by mutual agreement.

K. LAW

Nothing herein shall otherwise qualify the rights of the Superintendent and Board of Education or the unit member granted by law. Given the rapidly changing state of the

law in this area, to the extent that there are any conflicts between the provisions of this Article and applicable law, applicable law shall govern.

ARTICLE X

TOTAL AGREEMENT

This agreement represents the full understanding and commitment between the parties and replaces all previous agreements relative to items contained herein. This Agreement may be added in, deleted from, or otherwise changed by an agreement properly signed by each party.

No agreement, alteration, or variation, waiver or modification of any of the terms or conditions contained in this Agreement shall be binding upon the parties herein unless executed in writing by the parties. The parties acknowledge that this Agreement, together with any written modifications thereof, embody the complete and final understanding reached by the parties as to the wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment of all employees covered by this Agreement.

The Walnut Township Board of Education shall change its personnel policies and practices as may be necessary in order to give full force and effect to this Agreement. Should there be a conflict between this Agreement and any such policy or practice(s) then the terms of this Agreement shall prevail.

The duration of this Agreement shall be f witness whereof, we affix our signatures on this	from July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2025. In july day of July , 2022.
FOR THE ASSOCIATION:	FOR THE BOARD:
Muhall 2 Peters President, WTEA	President, Board of Education
WTEA Negotiations Team	Superintendent, Walnut Township
Janni Milan	Que Brad L
MIEA Negotiations Team Muchelle Melly	Treasurer, Walnut Township
WTEA Negotiations Team	Board Negotiations Team
Mal Payle WTEA Negotiations Team	

APPENDIX

FORM A

WALNUT TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

FORMAL GRIEVANCE FORM

CHECK APPROPRIATE BOX:

	Step One	Step Two-B	
	Step Two-A	Step Three	
Date		Time	
Name of Grieva	ant		
Section of Cont	tract Violated		
	rievance		
Resolution Sou	ght:		

FOR THE ASSOCIATION

Signature	
Date	_
Date	
	Date

FORM B

FORM B



Walnut Township Local Schools Observation Summary

Name: Date/Time: School Assigned: School Influences: Class/Grade: Class Activity:

SUMMARY OF OBSERVATION

COMMENDATIONS/RECOMMENDATIONS

Educators may comment or react	
Signatures do not necessarily mea	in concurrence; rather that the process was carried ou
Educator:	Date:
Evaluator:	Date:

Form C

Sick Leave Donation Request

A member of	f the Walnut Township Local School staff,	has ,
requested a donation	of sick leave due to the inability to report to work a	s normal. If you would
like to donate a port	on of your accumulated sick leave, please return thi	s form to the Treasurer,
by	so that plans can be made to address this requ	uest. If you donate sick
leave, it will be ded	ucted from your accumulation of sick leave (as sl	nown on your pay
check every two we	eks) and you will not have the use of the donated	leave and you cannot
ask for it to be retu	rned after it is used. If for unknown reasons the si	ck days are not used,
they will not be take	n from your accumulation and you will not lose then	m. The employee
requesting a donatio	n of sick leave cannot be given more than 20 days p	er contract year.
Employee requesting	g a donation of sick leave	
Employee DONATI	NG sick leave	
I have	days of sick leave accumulated. (Please look o	n your check stub)
I wish to donate	days of sick leave to the requesting	employee.
Signature		
Date		

Form D

WALNUT TOWNSHIP LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

School Nurse Evaluation

Name		
Building		
Years in Building		
Date		
	0-1-2-3-4	
	Final Profile Average	
Teacher comments	See attached	
Evaluator comments	See attached	
Three Five (: Continue of a Property of a Pr	(3) Year Limited Contract - Yearly (3) Year Limited Contract - Yearly (5) Year Limited Contract - Yearly nuing Contract - Yearly No later than Nofile Average of LESS THAN TWO (2) (ATING (if re-employed) the teacher will braised using forms A, B, and C the follow	
Signature of Nurse		Date
Signature of Evaluator _		Date

^{*} SIGNATURE: Signatures do not necessarily mean concurrence; rather that the process was carried out.

Directions: For each major category, circle the profile average

- *4 Distinguished
- 3 Commendable

* Comments needed

2 - Meets Requirements

** Suggestions for improvements needed

- **1- Needs Improvement
- **0- Unsatisfactory

For each major category, circle the profile average.

I. THEORY

Profile 0 1 2 3 4 Comments

Applies appropriate theory as basis for decision making in nursing practice.

- Demonstrates evidence of use of theory by sharing information with peers, students, family, staff, other professionals, and the community to assist change.
- Demonstrates application of theory by use of most recent techniques and information which govern actions.

II. PROGRAM MANAGEMENT

Profile 0 1 2 3 4 Comments

Maintains the standards of the school health program by following the guidelines from Fairfield County School Nurses' Handbook, Ohio Department of Health, Ohio Association of School Nurses, and National Association of School Nurses.

- Assumes responsibility for in-service programs for school personnel regarding health-related issues.
- 2. Establishes process to identify students at-risk for physical and psychosocial problems.
- Communicates student health needs to other school personnel, as appropriate.
- Establishes follow-up mechanism for referral of identified students.

III. NURSING PROCESS

Collects information about the health and developmental status of the student in a systematic and ongoing manner. Profile 01234 Comments

- Assumes responsibility for initiation of the pupil health record upon enrollment.
- Collects, records, and interprets health status data.

Uses data collected about the health and developmental status of the student to determine nursing care.

Profile 01234 Comments

- Formulates a nursing diagnosis based on a comprehensive assessment.
- Coordinates efforts with those of other providers and school personnel to decrease duplication of care.
- Identifies the relationship between health status and the student's ability to learn.

Develops, implements, and evaluates a nursing care plan with specific goals and interventions delineating school nursing actions unique to students' needs, when indicated. Profile 01234

- 1. Writes nursing care plans, when appropriate.
- Revises nursing care plan as goals are achieved, changed, or updated.
- Intervenes prudently, in a timely manner, observing standards of care based on current medical and nursing knowledge.
- Ensures that student, family and school personnel are informed about current health status and the interventions taking place within the school setting.
- Engages in appropriate and necessary school nursing care to ensure optimal educational opportunity for handicapped, chronically ill, or terminally ill students and all students.

- Reviews and evaluates documentation of nursing actions and pursues new information as appropriate.
- Determines new priorities and goals in collaboration with student family, and school personnel, if appropriate.

IV. <u>INTERDISCIPLINARY</u> <u>COLLABORATION</u>

Collaborates with other professionals in assessing, planning, implementing, and evaluating programs in other school health activities.

- Participates as an integral member of interdisciplinary teams.
- Assumes leadership in the individualized education plan when primary service for the student is health related.

V. HEALTH EDUCATION

Assists students, families, and groups to achieve optimal levels of wellness through health education.

- Demonstrates use of the principles of learning and appropriate teaching methods.
- Teaches the basic principles of health promotion and disease prevention to individuals and groups.
- Acts as a resource in health education to school personnel, students, and families.

Profile 0 1 2 3 4 Comments

Profile 0 1 2 3 4

VI. PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Profile 01234 Comments

Participates in evaluation to assure quality of health services provided for students and assumes responsibility for continuing education and professional development.

- Participates in continuing education programs to increase understanding and update skills.
- Assumes professional responsibilities demonstrated by membership and active support and/or participation in appropriate organizations.

VII. COMMUNITY HEALTH SYSTEMS

Profile 0 1 2 3 4 Comments

Participates with others to assess, plan, implement, and evaluate school health and community services.

- Interprets school health services needs and the role of the school nurse to the school and community.
- Collaborates with agencies within and outside the community to ensure continuity of service and care, when appropriate.

Form E

WALNUT TOWNSHIP LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

Librarian/Media Specialist Evaluation

Years in building _		
Date		
	0-1-2-3	1-4
	Final Profile	le Average
Teacher comments		See attached
Evaluator comments	3	See attached
I	Five (5) Year I Continuing Confidence of a Profile Avenue of re-employed	Limited Contract - Yearly Limited Contract - Yearly ontract - Yearly - No later than March 15 erage of LESS THAN TWO (2) IN RATING d) the teacher will be appraised using ad C the following year.
		Date
a constant of Digital Constant		
		Date

Directions: For each major category, circle the profile average

- *4 Distinguished
- * Comments needed
- 3 Commendable
- ** Suggestions for improvements needed
- 2 Meets Requirements
- **1 Needs Improvement
- **0 Unsatisfactory

For each major category, circle the profile average.

I. PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES

Profile 0 1 2 3 4 Comments

- Evaluates, selects and requisitions new media center books, materials, supplies and equipment.
- Assists teachers in the selection of books and other instructional materials.
- Informs teachers and other staff members concerning new materials acquired.
- Maintains a comprehensive and efficient system for cataloging and organizing all library and media materials, and instructs teachers and students in the use of the system.
- Maintains accurate, complete and correct written records as required by law, written district policy and written district and building administrative regulation.
- Prepares and administers the library budget.

II. PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES INSTRUCTION

Profile 0 1 2 3 4

- Plans a program of study compatible with the curriculum that as much as possible, meets the individual needs, interests and abilities of the students.
- Creates a media center environment that is conducive to learning and appropriate to the maturity and interests of students.

- Establishes clear objectives for all lessons, units and projects.
- Employs instructional methods and available materials that are most appropriate for meeting state objectives.
- Employs a variety of instructional techniques and educational media consistent with the physical limitations of the location provided and the needs and capabilities of the individuals or student groups involved.
- Works with teachers in planning those assignments likely to lead to extended use of the media center resources.
- Develops reasonable rules of media center behavior and procedure and maintains order in the media center in a fair and just manner.
- Helps students to develop habits of independent reference work and to develop skill in the use of reference materials.
- Presents and discusses materials with a class studying a particular topic, on the invitation of the teacher.
- Plans and supervises purposeful assignments for student media center aides, volunteer and student teachers, and evaluates their job performance when applicable.

III. PERSONAL EFFICIENCIES/ ATTRIBUTES

Profile

- Takes all necessary and reasonable precautions to protect students, equipment, materials and facilities.
- Provides for her/his own professional growth through such activities as reading, workshops, seminars, conferences, classroom visitations and/or advanced course work at institutions of higher learning, etc.

- 3. Attends staff meetings as required.
- 4. Has good attendance and is punctual.
- 5 Dresses appropriately and is well-groomed.
- 6. Exercises self-control.
- 7. Performs duties in a timely manner.

IV. SCHOOL-COMMUNITY RELATIONS

Profile 01234

- Coordinates with other school
 Librarian/Media Specialists in the district in
 the performance of their duties.
- Assists the student in the development of a positive self-concept.
 - Assists in upholding and enforcing school rules, administrative regulations and Board policy.
 - Establishes and maintains cooperative relations with other members of the professional and non-professional staff.
 - Cooperates with other members of the staff in planning goals, objectives, and methods, and strives to implement them by instruction and action.
 - Makes provision for being available to students and parents for conferences outside the instructional day when requested to do so under reasonable terms.
 - 7. Serves on staff committees.

Price Yr Bana Salary RAISE %: EV22 RASE SAI 1 39,279 2,00% 1 40,045

PISCAL VEAR 2023

SERVICE YEARS		0A		BA+158		MA		MA -15		MA+30
	HIDEX	AMOUNT	MOEX	AMOUNT	INDEX	AMOUNT	INDEX	AMOUNT	INDEX	AMOUNT
0	000000	49,000	1.03800	41,507	1.99500	43,671	1 12300	44,593	115:00	48.114
7	1.03800	41,587	1 08100	43,310	1.14300	45,794	1 17100	46,918	119900	48,037
2	2 IF76GG	43,100	1 12400	46,033	1 19400	47,717	1.21900	44,830	1 24700	49,961
3	1.11400	44,632	1.19700	65,755	1.23800	40,640	1.26700	50.762	1 20500	97,884
4	1.65200	44.154	1.21900	48,475	1.28700	51,563	1.31500	62,885	1.34300	93,607
3	119000	47,677	1 25300	50,264	1 33500	53,466	1 36300	94,608	1 39100	88,720
	1.22900	49,199	1 29000	\$1,924	1 38300	25,409	1,41100	56,531	1 43900	\$7,653
7	\$.2560Q	60,722	1.33000	53,844	1 43100	57,332	1 46500	66,370	1 48700	59.576
	1.30400	52,264	1.38200	\$3,760	1.47900	29,256	1.50700	60,377	1 53500	27,499
	1.34200	53,767	1.42500	97,002	1 52200	61,179	1.55500	62 300	1.58300	93,422
10	6.38000	56,209	1.46600	50,815	1.57560	63,100	1,50300	54.224	0011.01	05,345
11	1.41500	56,512	1.51100	80,638	1 02300	65,925	7 65100	55,147	187700	67,265
12	1.45600	56,334	1.55400	82,200	1.07100	65,240	1 89900	68,670	1 72700	09,192
13	£ 49400	99,656	1 59700	65,003	1,71900	86,871	1.74700	04.982	1 77500	77,116
14	1.83200	61,379	1 54000	#6,766	1.78700	70,714	1.78500	79.0010	1 #2300	73,038
19	1,57000	62,801	1 68300	67,428	1 81500	72,747	1 84300	73,535	1.87100	74,961
13	1 50800	64,424	1 72000	69,151	1 86300	74,640	T. 89100	76.762	1 91200	72,004
30	1,64500	65,646	1 76900	70,874	1 91100	78,582	1.93900	77,583	1 95/00	78,807
23	1,58400	87,460	1.81200	72,597	1.92900	78,487	1.86700	79,608	2 01500	40,735
20 (old 20)	1 72200	66,891	1 86500	74,329	2 00700	00,410	2.03600	69.691	2 06300	42,663
36	\$ 78000	70,514	1.69800	70,243	2.05500	42 121	2.08300	63,455	2 11100	34.576

Pylor Yr Basic Salery 1 40,1 RAISE N: 31 FYZ4 BASE BAL 1 41,2

PISCAL YEAR 2024

SERVICE YEARS		BA		BA+150		MA		MA+15		(KA+30)
menta a main a Maritalia.	INDEX	AMOUNT	MOEX	AMOUNT	INDEX	AMOUNT	INDEX	AMOUNT	NDEX	AMOUNT
Œ	1,00000	41.267	1.03900	42.835	1,39500	48,187	1,12360	45,343	1 15100	47,493
1	1,03000	42,835	1 08100	44,810	1.14300	47,180	1 17190	46,324	1 17900	49,479
2	1.07600	44,463	1.12400	46,384	1.19100	49,149	1.21900	56,304	1.20700	51,460
3	1.11400	45,871	1 16700	45,159	1,23900	51,130	1.28700	52,285	1 29500	53,641
4	1.15200	47,540	1.23000	49,933	1.28700	53,111	1,31560	54,260	1 34300	35,422
.5	1,19000	49,108	1,25300	81,707	1.33500	55,891	1,36300	56,247	1.39100	87,402
6	1 22800	50,676	+.29600	53,482	1.38300	57,072	1.41100	58,226	1 43900	56,363
7	1,26600	52,244	1.33900	85,256	1.43100	58,053	1 45690	60,122	4 48700	91,364
8	2.36400	53,912	1.38200	87,031	1 47900	61,034	1.50700	62,189	1 83500	63,349
9	1,34200	55,380	1 42800	58,805	1.52700	62,015	1 55500	64,170	1 68300	45,326
10	1.38000	56,648	1 45500	10,580	1.57500	54,995	1,00300	96,151	1 53100	47,396
11	7,41800	58,517	1.51100	62,354	1.67300	06,976	1.65100	68,132	+ 57900	80,287
12	1.45509	656,08	1.55400	64,129	1.67100	08,957	1.09900	70,113	1 72700	71,266
13	1 49400	81,653	1.80700	8,00,240	1 71300	70,938	1.74700	72,093	177550	73,24 h
14	1.53200	63,221	1.84000	57,873	1.70700	72,919	1.79500	74,074	1.82300	75,239
16	1,57000	64,789	1.68300	69,452	181500	74,909	1 54300	76,058	1 37100	77,210
18	1.60800	66,357	1,72600	71,227	1.85300	76,680	1,89198	78,030	* P1900	79,101
20	1.64600	67,925	1.76900	73,001	1 91100	78,061	1 03930	80,017	1.90700	81,172
23	1.68400	69,494	1.81200	74,778	1.05900	80,842	1.98700	W1,007	2.0 (800	83,157
25 (old 26)	1.72200	71,662	1.85500	76,550	2.09700	102,821	2.03500	83,875	2-06300	88,194
30	1,70000	72,636	1.89800	78,325	2.05500	84,864	2.06300	05,060	2.47100	87,115

Prior Yr Base Salary \$ 41,267
RAISE %: 3.00%
FY26 BASE BAL \$ 42,500

FISOAL YEAR 2025

SERVICE YEARS		BA		BA+150		UA I		MA+16		MAKID
	ACEDIA)	AMOUNT	INDIEX	AMCHINT	(NOEX	AMOUNT	NDEN	ANCOUNT	INDEX	AMCHINT
	1,00000	42.508	1 03800	64,125	1.00500	40,543	1.12300	47.733	1 15100	48.933
1	1 03600	44,129	1 00100	48,940	1.14300	45,563	1.17100	49.773	1 19900	50,964
2	1 07800	45,738	1 12400	47,77%	t 19100	50,623	1.21000	81,014	1.24700	53,004
3	1 13400	47,381	1 16700	49,503	1.23900	52,564	1 28700	83,854	1,29000	95,044
4	1.45200	49,544	1.21000	97,431	1.28700	54,704	1.31500	85,894	9.34300	67,094
5	1,78000	50,581	1.25300	63,236	1.33500	36,744	1 36300	SY.934	1,39100	50,124
	1.22800	52,198	1 29800	22.044	1 36300	58,784	1 41100	59,975	1-43900	61,105
7	1.25500	53,811	1.33900	55,814	1.43100	60,825	1.45090	61,926	1 48700	63,205
	1,30400	55,427	1.38200	58,742	1,47900	62,865	1.50700	54,050	1 50600	85,246
	1,34200	57,042	1.42500	60,578	1,62700	84,905	1,55500	66,095	1 58300	47,265
18	1.38000	86,657	1.46800	62,397	1.97500	66,545	1.60300	68,130	7 603300	00,326
11	1,41800	60,272	151100	64,225	1 62300	60,006	1 05100	70,170	1 \$7900	71,364
12	1.45500	61,887	1.55400	69,043	1,87100	F1,028	1 68900	72.216	1 72700	73,406
13	1.49460	83,502	1.59700	67,689	1.71900	73,866	1.74700	74,256	1.77500	73,448
16	1.63200	65,118	1.54000	09,708	1.76700	75,106	1,79500	78,296	1.82300	77,487
16	1.57000	86.733	1.683304	71,526	1,8150C	77,167	1 84300	78.337	1 87100	FB.527
10	1.60500	86,248	1.72800	75,384	1.88300	79,187	1.89100	60,377	1.91000	81,657
20	1.64600	69,963	176900	78,191	1.91100	81,227	1 93900	82,417	1/90700	83,667
23	1.88400	71,578	1,51200	77,019	1 95000	63,267	1.98700	84,457	2.01500	85,848
25 (old 28)	1.72200	73,994	1.85500	78,647	2.00700	85,304	2.03500	09,496	2.00300	87,688
30	1.76000	74,809	1.89800	80.675	2.0%500	A7 244	2 (HICK)	69.538	277100	84 726

WALNUT TOWNSHIP LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT SUPPLEMENTALS 2022-2023 SUPPLEMENTAL BASE SALARY \$ 40,065

POSITION GROUP RATE 1	0	1 YRS	2	4 YRS	5	7 YRS		B+YRS
ATHLETIC DIRECTOR*	\$	4,808	5	5,809		6,811	· c	7,813
HEAD FOOTBALL	55	4,808						
HEAD BOYS BASKETBALL		4,808		The state of the state of the				
HEAD GIRLS BASKETBALL		4,808						
	\$	The state of the state of the						
HEAD TRACK	5	4,808						
HEAD VOLLEYBALL	\$	4,808				6,811		
BAND DIRECTOR*	5	4,808						
DEAN OF STUDENTS WITH PRINIPAL*	3	7,212						
H.S MUSIC/SELECT DIRECTOR* GROUP RATE II	5	4,808	\$				ď.	
ASSISTANT FOOTBALL	\$	3,365						
ASSISTANT BOYS BASKETBALL	3							
ASSISTANT GIRLS BASKETBALL	S	3,365	5				\$	4,808
HEAD BASEBALL	\$	3,365	\$	3,846	\$	4,327	\$	4,808
HEAD SOFTBALL	\$	3,365	\$	3,846	\$	4,327	\$	4,808
GROUP RATE III								
ASSISTANT VOLLEYBALL	\$	2,885	5	3,365	\$	3,848	\$	4,327
FRESHMEN BOYS BASKETBALL	\$	2,885	S	3,365	\$	3,846	\$	4,327
FRESHMEN GIRLS BASKETBALL	\$	2,885	\$				S	4,327
ASSISTANT TRACK	\$	2,885	\$				S	
VARSITY WRESTLING	\$	2.885	\$					4,327
VARSITY SOCCER	\$	2,885	\$					
SENIOR CLASS ADVISOR*	\$	2,885	5			3,846	-	
LEAD TEACHER ELEMENTARY*	\$	2.885	\$					
JUNIOR CLASS/PROM ADVISOR*	\$	2,885	\$					
FOOTBALL CHEERLEADING	\$	2,885	\$					
BASKETBALL CHEERLEADING	5	2,885	15	3,385		and the second		4,327
GROUP RATE IV	*	2,545		- Inde	-	m1 m 11 m		L. J. Specialist
BOYS GOLF	5	2,404	5	2,885	5	3,365	\$	3,846
GIRLS GOLF	\$	2,404					- 3	
CROSS COUNTRY	\$	2,404						
JAZZ BAND DIRECTOR*	\$	2,404		2,885				1000
MARCHING BAND/AUX DIRECTOR	5	2,404				3,365		
ASSISTANT BASEBALL	\$			2,885				
ASSISTANT SOFTBALL	5	2,404	5			3,365		3,846
HEAD JR HIGH FOOTBALL	5	2,404						3,846
JR HIGH BASKETBALL	5	2,404	\$	2,885	\$	3,365		
FRESHMEN VOLLEYBALL	S	2,404	5	2,885	S	3,365	S	3,846
GROUP RATE V	щ	2,404	4	2,000	40.	0,000	9	0,040
JR HIGH TRACK	\$	1.923		2,164	\$	2,404	S	2,644
ASSISTANT JR HIGH FOOTBALL		1.923		2,164				2-3 ()
JR HIGH VOLLEYBALL	\$	1,923	\$	2,164	5	2,404	5	2,644
QUIZ TEAM ADVISOR*	\$	1,923		2,164	5			2141
YEARBOOK ADVISOR*	9	1,923	5	2,164		2,404	\$	
DESTINATION IMAG COORDINATOR	S	1,923	\$			2,404		2,644
HS FALL EVENT MANAGER	5	1,923	5	2,164	5	2,404	9	
HS WINTER EVENT MANAGER	3	1,923			1000	2,404		2,644
THE VALLET EVENT MAINAGEN	9	1,823	\$	2,164	5	5,4U4	\$	2,644

WALNUT TOWNSHIP LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT SUPPLEMENTALS 2022-2023 SUPPLEMENTAL BASE SALARY: \$ 40,065

POSITION GROUP RATE VI	0-1	YRS	2-	4 YRS	5-	7 YRS	8	+YRS
SOPH CLASS ADVISOR*	S	962	\$	1,202	\$	1,442	3	1,683
JR HIGH CHEERLEADING	\$	962	\$	1,202	5	1,442	\$	1,683
SCHOOL PLAY DIRECTOR	\$	962	\$	1,202	5	1,442	3	1,683
HIGH SCHOOL STUDENT COUNCIL*	\$	962	\$	1,202	3	1,442	3	1,683
WEB MASTER-DISTRICT*	\$	962	\$	1,202	\$	1,442	\$	1,683
WEB MASTER-JR /SR, HIGH*	\$	962	\$	1,202	\$	1,442	\$	1,683
WEB MASTER-ELEMENTARY*	\$	962	8	1,202	\$	1,442	\$	1,683
ELEM PROGRESS BOOK COORD*	\$	962	\$	1,202	\$	1,442	5	1,683
DESTINATION IMAG TEAM MANAGER	\$	962	S	1,202	\$	1,442	\$	1,683
JH FALL EVENT MANAGER	\$	962	\$	1,202	\$	1,442	\$	1,683
JH WINTER EVENT MANAGER	\$	962	\$	1,202	\$	1,442	5	1,683
SPRING EVENT MANAGER	\$	962	\$	1,202	\$	1,442	\$	1,683
GROUP RATE VII						N.		
NATIONAL HONOR SOCIETY*	\$	721	\$	962	\$	1,202	5	1,442
SPANISH CLUB*	\$	721	\$	962	\$	1,202	\$	1,442
GERMAN CLUB*	\$	721	\$	962	\$	1,202	\$	1,442
ART CLUB	S	721	\$	962	\$	1,202	\$	1,442
AMERICAN SIGN LANGUAGE CLUB	S	721	\$	962	\$	1.202	\$	1.442

Dean of Students with full-time Principal will receive an additional supend of .06.

The Board may fill or not fill any supplemental position in any given year, upon recommendation of the Superintendent

^{*} Indicates Year-Long Supplemental.

WALNUT TOWNSHIP LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT SUPPLEMENTALS 2023-2024

SUPPLEMENTAL BASE SALARY: \$ 41,267

POSITION GROUP RATE 1	0	1 YRS	2	4 YRS	5	-7 YRS	1	B+YRS	
ATHLETIC DIRECTOR*	•	4 050		E 004		7045	o	0.047	
				5,984				8,047	
HEAD FOOTBALL								8,047	
HEAD BOYS BASKETBALL								8,047	
HEAD GIRLS BASKETBALL								8,047	
HEAD TRACK	\$	4,952	\$	5,984	\$	7,015	\$	8,047	
HEAD VOLLEYBALL				5,984					
BAND DIRECTOR*				5,984					
DEAN OF STUDENTS WITH PRINIPAL*	8	7,428	\$	8,460	\$	9,491	\$	10,523	
H.S. MUSIC/SELECT DIRECTOR* GROUP RATE II	\$	4,952	\$	5,984	\$	7.015	3	8.047	
ASSISTANT FOOTBALL	\$	3,466	\$	3,962	\$	4,457	3	4,952	
ASSISTANT BOYS BASKETBALL	\$	3,466	5	3,962	\$	4,457	S	4,952	
ASSISTANT GIRLS BASKETBALL	\$			3,952					
HEAD BASEBALL	\$			3,952					
HEAD SOFTBALL	5							4,952	
GROUP RATE III		50157	17	-1.		30.357	Ē	.,,	
ASSISTANT VOLLEYBALL	\$	2,971	S	3,466	8	3.962	\$	4 457	
FRESHMEN BOYS BASKETBALL								4,457	
FRESHMEN GIRLS BASKETBALL	\$			3,466				4,457	
ASSISTANT TRACK		2 971	S	3,466	5			4,457	
VARSITY WRESTLING		2,971		3,466				4,457	
VARSITY SOCCER			200	3,466				4,457	
SENIOR CLASS ADVISOR*				3,466				4,457	
LEAD TEACHER ELEMENTARY				3,466				4,457	
JUNIOR CLASS/PROM ADVISOR*				3,466				4,457	
FOOTBALL CHEERLEADING		2,971							
- ^ 레스트리스 전 - 레크리크레 크로스 이용 이 전에서 프리스 시간이 모든 경기가 되었다면서 하셨습니다.						3,962		4,457	
BASKETBALL CHEERLEADING GROUP RATE IV	\$								
BOYS GOLF				2,971		3,466			
GIRLS GOLF				2,971		3,466			
CROSS COUNTRY				2,971					
JAZZ BAND DIRECTOR*				2,971		3,466			
MARCHING BAND/AUX DIRECTOR	5	2,476	\$	2,971	\$	3,466	\$	3.962	
ASSISTANT BASEBALL	\$	2,476	\$	2,971	\$	3,466	\$	3,962	
ASSISTANT SOFTBALL	\$	2,476	\$	2,971	\$	3,468	5	3,962	
HEAD JR HIGH FOOTBALL				2,971		3,468	\$	3,982	
JR HIGH BASKETBALL	\$	2,476	\$	2,971	\$	3,466	\$	3,982	
FRESHMEN VOLLEYBALL	3	2,476	\$	2,971	S	3,468	\$	3,962	
GROUP RATE V		37.							
JR HIGH TRACK	S	1,981	\$	2,228	\$	2,476	\$	2,724	
ASSISTANT JR HIGH FOOTBALL	S	1,981		2,228					
JR HIGH VOLLEYBALL	\$	1,981		2,228					
QUIZ TEAM ADVISOR*		1,981		2,228					
YEARBOOK ADVISOR*	5	1,981		2,228		2,476			
DESTINATION IMAG COORDINATOR	5	1,981		2,228					
HS FALL EVENT MANAGER	\$	1,981		2,228					
HS WINTER EVENT MANAGER	\$	1,981	\$			2,476			
THE PERSON NAMED IN COLUMN TWO IS NOT THE OWNER.	4	1100	*	_,		-1	-		

WALNUT TOWNSHIP LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT SUPPLEMENTALS 2023-2024

DUDDI FUELETAL DADE DALLENA	- N. C.							
GROUP RATE VI	\$ 4	1,267						
SOPH CLASS ADVISOR*	5	990	5	1.238	\$	1,486	5	1,733
JR HIGH CHEERLEADING	\$	990	\$	1,238	\$	1,486	\$	1,733
SCHOOL PLAY DIRECTOR	\$	990	\$	1.238	\$	1,486	\$	1,733
HIGH SCHOOL STUDENT COUNCIL*	\$	990	\$	1,238	\$	1,486	\$	1,733
WEB MASTER-DISTRICT*	3	990	\$	1,238	\$	1,486	5	1,733
WEB MASTER-JR /SR. HIGH*	\$	990	\$	1.238	\$	1,486	\$	1,733
WEB MASTER-ELEMENTARY*	\$	990	S	1,238	\$	1,486	5	1,733
ELEM PROGRESS BOOK COORD*	\$	990	\$	1,238	5	1,486	5	1,733
DESTINATION IMAG TEAM MANAGER	5	990	\$	1,238	3	1,486	5	1,733
JH FALL EVENT MANAGER	\$	990	\$	1,238	\$	1,486	\$	1,733
JH WINTER EVENT MANAGER	\$	990	\$	1,238	\$	1,486	5	1,733
SPRING EVENT MANAGER	\$	990	\$	1,238	5	1,486	\$	1,733
GROUP RATE VII								
NATIONAL HONOR SOCIETY*	\$	743	\$	990	\$	1,238	\$	1,486
SPANISH CLUB*	\$	743	\$	990	\$	1,238	\$	1,486
GERMAN CLUB*	\$	743	\$	990	\$	1,238	\$	1,486
ART CLUB	\$	743	\$	990	3	1,238	\$	1,486
AMERICAN SIGN LANGUAGE CLUB	\$	743	5	990	5	1,238	\$	1,486

Dean of Students with full-time Principal will receive an additional stipend of .06.

The Board may fill or not fill any supplemental position in any given year, upon recommendation of the Superintendent

^{*} Indicates Year-Long Supplemental

WALNUT TOWNSHIP LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT SUPPLEMENTALS 2024-2025

SUPPLEMENTAL BASE SALARY: \$ 42,505

POSITION GROUP RATE 1	0-1 YRS		2	-4 YRS	5	-7 YRS	1	8+VRS
ATHLETIC DIRECTOR*	\$	5,101	-00	0 405	d	7 220		0.500
HEAD FOOTBALL	-					7,226		
HEAD BOYS BASKETBALL	5					7,226		
	\$							
HEAD GIRLS BASKETBALL		5,101						8,288
HEAD TRACK	5	5,101		6,163				8,288
HEAD VOLLEYBALL	3	5,101						
BAND DIRECTOR*		5,101		6,163				M. M. Maria
DEAN OF STUDENTS WITH PRINIPAL*				8,714				10,839
H.S. MUSIC/SELECT DIRECTOR* GROUP RATE II	\$	5,101						8,288
ASSISTANT FOOTBALL	\$	3,570				4,591		
ASSISTANT BOYS BASKETBALL	3					4,591		
ASSISTANT GIRLS BASKETBALL	\$					4,591		
HEAD BASEBALL	\$	G				4,591		
HEAD SOFTBALL	S	3,570	5	4,080	\$	4,591	5	5,101
GROUP RATE III								
ASSISTANT VOLLEYBALL	5			3,570				4,591
FRESHMEN BOYS BASKETBALL	\$	3,060	\$	3,570	\$	4,080	\$	4,591
FRESHMEN GIRLS BASKETBALL	3				\$	4,080	\$	4,591
ASSISTANT TRACK		3,060			\$	4,080	\$	4,591
VARSITY WRESTLING	3	3,060	\$	3,570	\$	4,080	\$	4,591
VARSITY SOCCER	\$	3,060	\$	3,570	\$	4,080	\$	4,591
SENIOR CLASS ADVISOR*	\$	3,060	\$	3,570	\$	4,080	\$	4,591
LEAD TEACHER ELEMENTARY*	\$	3,060	\$	3,570	\$	4,080	\$	4,591
JUNIOR CLASS/PROM ADVISOR*	\$	3,060	\$	3,570	\$	4,080	\$	4.591
FOOTBALL CHEERLEADING	5		5	3,570	\$	4,080	\$	4,591
BASKETBALL CHEERLEADING	5	3,060	5	3,570	S	4,080	\$	4.591
GROUP RATE IV								
BOYS GOLF	\$	2,550	\$	3,060	\$	3,570	3	4,080
GIRLS GOLF	\$	2,550	\$	3,060	\$	3,570	\$	4,080
CROSS COUNTRY	\$	2,550	\$	3,060	\$	3,570	\$	4,080
JAZZ BAND DIRECTOR*	\$	2,550	S	3,060	\$	3,570	\$	4,080
MARCHING BAND/AUX DIRECTOR	\$	2,550	S	3,060	\$	3,570	\$	4,080
ASSISTANT BASEBALL	\$	2,550	\$	3,060	\$	3,570	\$	4,080
ASSISTANT SOFTBALL	\$	2,550	\$	3,060	\$	3.570	\$	4,080
HEAD JR HIGH FOOTBALL	5	2,550	\$	3,060	\$	3,570	\$	4,080
JR HIGH BASKETBALL	\$	2,550	\$	3,060	\$	3,570	\$	4,080
FRESHMEN VOLLEYBALL	S	2,550	\$	3,060	\$	3,570	\$	4,080
GROUP RATE V JR HIGH TRACK		2,040		2 205		2 550		
ASSISTANT JR HIGH FOOTBALL			\$			2,550	\$	2,805
		2,040	\$	2,295		2,550	\$	2,805
JR HIGH VOLLEYBALL QUIZ TEAM ADVISOR*	3		\$	2,295		2,550	\$	2,805
		2,040		2,295		2,550	\$	2,805
YEARBOOK ADVISOR*		2,040	\$			2,550		2,805
DESTINATION IMAG COORDINATOR		2,040	\$			2,550	\$	2,805
HS FALL EVENT MANAGER			\$	2,295	\$	2,550	-	2,805
HS WINTER EVENT MANAGER	S	2,040	\$	2,295	\$	2,550	\$	2,805

WALNUT TOWNSHIP LOCAL SCHOOL DISTRICT SUPPLEMENTALS 2024-2025

2024-2020									
SUPPLEMENTAL BASE SALARY: GROUP RATE VI	\$	42,505							
SOPH CLASS ADVISOR*	\$	1,020	\$	1,275	\$	1,530	\$	1,785	
JR HIGH CHEERLEADING	\$	1,020	\$	1,275	5	1,530	\$	1,785	
SCHOOL PLAY DIRECTOR	\$	1,020	\$	1,275	\$	1,530	\$	1,785	
HIGH SCHOOL STUDENT COUNCIL*	\$	1,020	5	1,275	\$	1,530	\$	1,785	
WEB MASTER-DISTRICT*	\$	1,020	\$	1,275	\$	1,530	\$	1,785	
WEB MASTER-JR /SR. HIGH*	S	1,020	\$	1,275	\$	1,530	\$	1,785	
WEB MASTER-ELEMENTARY*	5	1,020	\$	1,275	3	1,530	\$	1,785	
ELEM PROGRESS BOOK COORD*	3	1,020	5	1,275	5	1,530	\$	1,785	
DESTINATION IMAG TEAM MANAGER	5	1,020	\$	1,275	5	1,530	\$	1,785	
JH FALL EVENT MANAGER	\$	1,020	\$	1,275	\$	1,530	\$	1,785	
JH WINTER EVENT MANAGER	5	1.020	5	1,275	\$	1,530	\$	1,785	
SPRING EVENT MANAGER	\$	1,020	\$	1,275	5	1,530	5	1,785	
GROUP RATE VII									
NATIONAL HONOR SOCIETY"	\$	765	\$	1,020	5	1,275	\$	1,530	
SPANISH CLUB*	3	765	5	1,020	5	1,275	\$	1,530	
GERMAN CLUB*	5	765	\$	1,020	\$	1,275	5	1,530	
ART CLUB	5	765	5	1,020	\$	1,275	5	1,530	
AMERICAN SIGN LANGUAGE CLUB	5	765	\$	1.020	\$	1,275	5	1,530	

Dean of Students with full-time Principal will receive an additional stipend of .08.

The Board may fall or not fill any supplemental position in any given year, upon recommendation of the Superariandent

^{*} Indicates Year-Long Supplemental.